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          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Good morning,

          3  everyone.  I would like to call this meeting of the

          4  Subcommittee of Zoning and Franchises to order.

          5                 I do apologize for the late start but

          6  as our rules of this Committee is that we will not

          7  start until we have quorum for the public hearing.

          8                 Joining me this morning are members

          9  of the Committee, Council Members Mike McMahon, Eric

         10  Gioia, Melinda Katz, Simcha Felder, and Al Vann.

         11                 We are moving right along with the

         12  agenda, the first item will be Land Use Number 32,

         13  which is commonly referred to as the "Midwood

         14  rezoning", C060130 ZMK, and we have the Department

         15  of City Planning here to make the application.

         16                 Good morning.

         17                 MS. MEYER:  Good morning Council

         18  Member Avella, Council Member Katz, and members of

         19  the Land Use Committee.

         20                 I am Regina Meyer, I am Director of

         21  the Brooklyn office of the Department of City

         22  Planning.  I am here today to discuss the Midwood

         23  rezoning proposal that is before you today for

         24  consideration.

         25                 As we discussed during the Homecrest
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          2  rezoning, this area of Community District 14, like

          3  that area of District 15, what is zoned currently

          4  R6, and that is a relatively liberal zoning district

          5  which permits a wide range of housing types in the

          6  FAR range from 2.43 to 4.8, if community facility

          7  use is required.

          8                 My office undertook a very, vary

          9  careful study of this area, and as you could see on

         10  the board to my left, this rezoning area encompasses

         11  a long corridor of Ocean Avenue, and an area to the

         12  west to Coney Island Avenue, and then in the south

         13  along Kings Highway.

         14                 We applied the basic principals of

         15  using contextual zoning to this area.  In terms of

         16  highlights, I would say from the zoning map you

         17  could see that we used the R7A District, which is an

         18  apartment house district along Ocean Avenue, Kings

         19  Highway, Avenue J, K and the area along Elm Avenue

         20  where there is an apartment house context.  That was

         21  for an area of over 55 blocks.

         22                 We also, at the same time, downzoned

         23  a significant area using mainly the R4- 1 District,

         24  and that district is the district which would only

         25  permit semi- attached or detached homes where they
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          2  exist now.  You can see from the map, we used this

          3  primarily in the area south of Elm Avenue to the

          4  area of Avenue P and Kings Highway, and we carefully

          5  used that district where the housing type warranted

          6  it.

          7                 I want to focus of four items that we

          8  made changes on during the public review of this

          9  application.  Along Elm Avenue we changed one area

         10  from R4- 1 to R6.  We changed one area of Ocean

         11  Avenue from R4- 1 to R6A, that is between Avenues N

         12  and O.  We corrected a commercial overlay along

         13  Ocean Avenue, north of Avenue M, and also made sure

         14  that the correct commercial overlays along Coney

         15  Island Avenue.

         16                 If there are any questions, I would

         17  happy to take them.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Any questions

         19  from committee members?

         20                 I see we have also been joined by

         21  committee member Robert Jackson.

         22                 No?  Thank you.

         23                 MS. MEYER:  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  We have a number

         25  of people signed up to speak on this item.
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          2                 I will take them as I will do for all

          3  the other items today, in alternating panels, those

          4  in favor, those opposed. We will limit people to two

          5  minutes.  I ask that you keep to the time frame.  I

          6  do not necessarily cut people off in mid- sentence

          7  but please, in order that we move this thing along

          8  expeditiously, that please try to keep to the two

          9  minutes, and try and not repeat what somebody

         10  previously said.

         11                 I will start with the first panel in

         12  favor, Meir Morgulis from the Good Neighbors

         13  Association of Midwood, David Askarinam, Meir Weiss,

         14  and Jacob Eis, did I pronounce it right?

         15                 MR. MORGULIS:  Good morning, my name

         16  is Meir Morgulis and I represent the Good Neighbors

         17  Association of Midwood, and we ask that you please

         18  adopt the zoning map changes now, and address any

         19  modifications or tweaks at a later time.

         20                 Postponement will only give

         21  developers more time to undermine the clear intent

         22  of the proposed map changes.  With any delay, more

         23  homes are razed as developers rush to lay

         24  foundations, and homeowners living near these

         25  properties find that their properties are
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          2  trespassed, and their foundations compromised.

          3                 The Association has heard many times

          4  of developers who build without regard to their

          5  neighbors, the zoning resolution, and the building

          6  code.  Even after receiving`stop work orders', many

          7  developers continue to build figuring that the

          8  violations are simply the cost of doing business.

          9                 In one case on East 13th Street, a

         10  developer constructed a fence blocking and damaging

         11  the homeowners driveway, and refused to comply with

         12  DOB's stop work orders, and the owner was forced to

         13  hire an attorney to get a temporary restraining

         14  order.  The developer claims he is being victimized.

         15    The developers attorney has argued that his

         16  properties were bought for the expectation that he

         17  could continue to develop. Notwithstanding, that the

         18  developer owns several properties purchased some

         19  time ago, and should have done his own due

         20  diligence, I would suggest that before pleading for

         21  mercy at his neighbors' expense, the developer come

         22  in with clean hands.

         23            While we await downzoning, we will

         24  continue to be plagued with out- of- context and

         25  non- zoning compliant construction.  For example,
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          2  rear yard medical offices in R6 zones, which this

          3  council has deemed impermissible 20 months ago, and

          4  oversized buildings built under the rubric of

          5  Quality Housing, even when Quality Housing is not

          6  available for that property.

          7                 For example, a developer on East 19th

          8  Street was issued a stop work order last week after

          9  his excavation caused the collapse of his neighbor's

         10  garage wall.  The online DOB specs of this property

         11  indicate that the property is using a high FAR due

         12  to Quality Housing.  However, this lot is not even

         13  eligible for Quality Housing.

         14                 So again, we find that those asking

         15  for a delay or to maintain R6 zones, are the ones

         16  that themselves who are damaging properties and

         17  building contrary to zoning regulations.

         18                 I could go on, but the point is:

         19  Every delay allows the type of overdevelopment that

         20  the zoning map changes are intended to remedy via

         21  DOB or BSA substantial completion tests.

         22                 MR. ASKARINAM:  Hi, my name is David

         23  Askarinam.  I am, in my hand I have the petition

         24  from hundreds of homeowners on the block which are

         25  posing this- in favor of this downzoning, and
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          2  believe me, in this area we have been intimidated,

          3  we have been harassed, falsely taken to the court,

          4  to let us use our driveway, our side entrances, to

          5  build the illegal fence.  Their drawings are

          6  fraudulent.

          7                 What basically they do, they go to

          8  Building Department, and they get approval which is

          9  self- certified, and please let us stop this self-

         10  certification.  I bet you most of these properties

         11  in the area, which have already been built, if the

         12  Building Department reviewed them and audited them,

         13  it is not to the standard.  I think that they are

         14  basically running our life.

         15                 It is not-- as a matter of fact, Mr.

         16  Solny the attorney representing the developers and

         17  his wife came and asked to build in my property.

         18  Obviously, Mr. Solny has a financial interest in the

         19  property, and he should disclose it.  He is not

         20  representing the homeowners, he is representing

         21  himself.  It is not right what he is doing to us,

         22  and I know a couple of instances on the next block,

         23  they have been threatened, their tires were slashed.

         24    They are just building humongous, let me see, if

         25  somebody make a building next to your house, would
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          2  they be happy?  It is a handful of them.  It is not

          3  hundreds of them, a handful of developers who are

          4  doing this, and they are ruining everybody in the

          5  area.

          6            Honestly please, let us go ahead with the

          7  downzoning, and let us get this stopped once and for

          8  all.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I just wanted to

         10  comment before we go to the next speaker.

         11                 I assume those incidents about the

         12  tire slashing have been reported to the police?

         13                 MR. ASKARINAM:  Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Okay, next

         15  speaker.

         16                 RABBI WEISS:  Hello, good morning.

         17  My name is Rabbi Meir Weiss.  I live on East 13th

         18  Street, in the area that is concerned here, and I am

         19  associated with Meir Rabbinical College (phonetic),

         20  a major institution located in the heart of

         21  Flatbush. I am opposed to R6, which will destroy the

         22  taste and flavor of our neighborhoods, and cause us

         23  tremendous loss of property value and tremendous

         24  damage to the neighborhood and the flavor and the

         25  lives of our children and our homes.
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          2                 I would just like to add a personal

          3  story having a house next to where a developer wants

          4  to encroach upon us.  Half an hour before the

          5  sabbath, he delivered court papers suing us, when an

          6  Article 881, which is an article which seems to

          7  presume that he can grab our piece of land without

          8  any justification because he wants to extend to the

          9  other border of our property, adjacent, and build

         10  right next to the foundation of our house.  The

         11  Article 881 has no standing whatsoever.  We have

         12  shown it to attorneys, and they say it is

         13  felicitous, and it was already destroyed in the

         14  appellate court many years ago, but most do not

         15  understand that, and they do not have the fortitude

         16  or the stance to fight it.

         17                 We know of a case on East 18th

         18  Street, an elderly Jewish couple which were

         19  intimidated in the same substance, with the same

         20  papers, not even changed with hours, which is

         21  completely false information while the lawyer left,

         22  they caught him on the left hand corner and were

         23  able to combine the two cases.  That elderly Jewish

         24  couple were intimidated, were frightened, they were

         25  afraid to go to court, and they immediately crumbled
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          2  and they gave in from this intimidation from by the

          3  builders because of the frighteness (sic) of the

          4  costs and expenditures of simple litigation.  They

          5  were dealing with a developer/owner who also happens

          6  to be a lawyer.  We in turn will fight it.

          7                 We spoke to this couple in Florida,

          8  they cried to us, they said,`what can we do now?'

          9  And at this moment, we have no solution for them but

         10  for the rest of us homeowners in the neighborhood,

         11  we have to sit there and fight with them and say we

         12  will not stand silent, we will not stand quiet, we

         13  will not be intimidated with litigation, and only

         14  with the help of the city council defending our

         15  rights, with this felicitous statute of 881 and so

         16  on, and so forth, which does not say you can grab

         17  land, that the developers have no claim of eminent

         18  domain, that is the purview of the government.  That

         19  is not a developers right to grab our land for no

         20  purpose and no reason, and that we will fight, and

         21  that we will not agree to.

         22                 As Mr. Askarinam said, they came

         23  along with a self certification.  The job was on

         24  hold, they served us court papers, I have the papers

         25  from the Building Department, and on the one hand I
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          2  have the court case, on the second I have the

          3  building on hold. They came at us with a slight

          4  alteration to build a major building foundation,

          5  border to border, which is not legal, they put a

          6  seminary in, which they found a loop hole in the law

          7  that you can build border to border seminary.  They

          8  gave already terms to the seminary that they must

          9  leave in two months, on one hand a bait and switch,

         10  they are moving in border to border with a seminary,

         11  two months later they said they have to move, going

         12  straight to the property because they cannot build

         13  their six floors and destroy the whole neighborhood

         14  if they do not go border to border, and destroy

         15  everyone's foundation.

         16                 We ask the city council to defend the

         17  rights of the citizens' neighborhood.  We beg and

         18  plead with them that they should stand up and make

         19  sure that the neighborhood retains its flavor, and

         20  we do not have to suffer under this intimidation

         21  with this false building code, with a job on hold,

         22  serving papers with a job on hold before even the

         23  person has a right to build.

         24                 I thank you for your help, and

         25  hopefully this will be stopped, and we will go away
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          2  from R6.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 MR. EIS:  Good morning, my name is

          5  Jacob Eis.  I am a homeowner on East 13th Street,

          6  and I am frankly appalled at the ability of builders

          7  who, certainly, have much more funds at their

          8  disposable to be able to do what they want and the

          9  homeowners are at risk, and they really have no

         10  recourse other than expending a lot of money and

         11  time in the effort to fight them.  Certainly the

         12  builders know the codes, and how to work through the

         13  legal building department, and all the issues a lot

         14  more efficiently than any homeowners would, and

         15  there is an unfair advantage and they are using that

         16  to their leverage.

         17                 So, we plead with the council to

         18  approve of the downzoning, and that will hopefully

         19  stop the builders.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Council Member

         21  Felder has a question.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Thank you,

         23  good morning.

         24                 I just have a general comment, and it

         25  is becoming a mantra already but, most of the
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          2  difficulty that comes up with these downzonings has

          3  a lot to do with the fact of an issue that the

          4  Chair, Councilman Avella, as well as the Chairman

          5  from Land Use, Melinda Katz, we have talked about

          6  numerous times, which is, that under the way the

          7  things work today, up until the time the city votes,

          8  the council votes, for downzoning in fact by the

          9  entire council, they can do whatever they want, and

         10  we know that when you get bills for taxes or for

         11  water, they know how to find you.  But when it comes

         12  to changing the zoning in a neighborhood, many

         13  people do not find out about anything until the last

         14  minute.

         15                 So, instead of spending time, I am

         16  talking about myself, you can do whatever you want,

         17  in making the developers into devils, which some of

         18  them are.  But the real issue at hand is changing

         19  the way it works permanently so that homeowners in a

         20  neighborhood where there is a proposal for

         21  downzoning, find out about it as soon as the

         22  proposal takes place.  Do not clap, you are not

         23  supposed to clap because then you make me look good,

         24  and it is not good.

         25                 The proposal that the chair and other
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          2  members have put forth, including Councilman

          3  Gennaro, is that the City would be obligated to

          4  notify by certified mail every property owner within

          5  a neighborhood that is proposed to be downzoned,

          6  which would allow you the opportunity way in advance

          7  to have something to say about it, or not to say

          8  about it.

          9                 In addition, there is a proposal to,

         10  sort of, freeze things as soon as a proposal takes

         11  place, to put a moratorium, which many of the

         12  developers will not like, but sort of has sense

         13  because it say to developers,`you do not have to

         14  rush because you cannot do anything.'

         15                 Right now the developers, the reason

         16  they are going nuts because they know the clock is

         17  ticking, and they have to get it in within a certain

         18  time.

         19                 If the law was that once a proposal

         20  was put forth, there would be a moratorium that

         21  would freeze things, that would mean that nothing

         22  could take place until the final vote, instead of

         23  developers having to beat the clock, and do whatever

         24  is necessary.

         25                 So, I am not in any way belittling
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          2  the problems that some of you have mentioned.  All I

          3  am saying to you is that if this is to ever be

          4  solved permanently, not for you, now it is too late

          5  but for other people, and there are going to be many

          6  other downzonings, the only way it is going to be

          7  solved is if we are able to put into place,

          8  hopefully without the legislation, but with the

          9  wonderful Department of Planning working with the

         10  city council to implement these policies, so people

         11  like you do not find out the last minute that you

         12  are having these things take place with regard to

         13  your property.

         14                 MR. MORGULIS:  Can I respond?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Yes, Council

         16  Member Gioia.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Sorry, I will

         18  let you respond in a second.

         19                 Mr. Chair, I agree completely with

         20  everything Council Member Felder just said.

         21                 Do we have an estimate yet from City

         22  Planning, how much this would cost?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  No, we do not,

         24  but the legislation is being reintroduced this

         25  Wednesday.  Council Member Gennaro and myself are
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          2  reintroducing the legislation, so, at that point we

          3  will have a hearing, and we are going to require the

          4  administration to come up with some accurate

          5  figures.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chair, and thank you Councilman Felder for your very

          8  erudite and smart -- okay, never mind, I will not

          9  make him look good either.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  And by the way

         11  just for the record, in terms of the moratorium

         12  legislation, I am asking every council member to

         13  sign on this, and my staff has been reaching out to

         14  members who are not on this.  I think we are at like

         15  25 at this point.

         16                 Thank you, gentlemen.

         17                 MR. MORGULIS:  Could I respond to

         18  Councilman Felder?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Sure.

         20                 MR. MORGULIS:  I would say that as a

         21  prophylactic measure, you are absolutely correct.

         22  But the truth is, once City Planning was kicked in

         23  motion, every house in Midwood went up $200,000.

         24  So, this was absolutely no surprise to the builders.

         25  The builders should have done their due diligence.
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          2  We are talking about people who bought, either years

          3  in advance, or months in advance and knew darn well

          4  what they were doing to the expense of the rest of

          5  the neighborhood.  Notwithstanding the fact that

          6  people continue to build, and we are not just

          7  talking about CD 14, we can look at CD 15.  I can

          8  show you a street on 19th between Quentin are our-

          9  building after building after building, where in the

         10  last three to six months, right after the homepress

         11  changes were made, each one of those buildings has

         12  had major violations that the Department of

         13  Buildings never checked.  No one ever checked the

         14  front sheet to see whether the zoning requirements

         15  were met, which each one of us as lay people could

         16  probably figure out.  There is a building on that

         17  block where zoning requirements were not even

         18  mentioned on the front page of the plans.

         19                 So, this thing is much, much larger

         20  than simply a prophylactic measure of protecting the

         21  homeowners and protecting the developers.

         22                 The people in Midwood are being

         23  harmed.  They are being harmed every day.  Every

         24  delay cause more and more damage, and we are begging

         25  for your help.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Can I

          3  respond?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Sure.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I think you

          6  misunderstood me, which is quite common, people

          7  misunderstand me.

          8                 I was not trying to convince you that

          9  the developers do not know what is going on.  I know

         10  they know what is going on.

         11                 What I was saying is that most of the

         12  homeowners do not know, and that is a fact.  Most of

         13  the homeowners do not know what is going on until

         14  the very end, and that is in part, in part, the

         15  reason that some of what takes place, takes place

         16  because it just happens without anybody knowing, and

         17  you are right about this zoning, it is not going to

         18  help because nothing is going to change.

         19                 But in terms of future downzoning, I

         20  think the legislation that the chair has suggested

         21  will help tremendously.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  In the meantime,

         23  as chair of this committee, if you can get me a list

         24  of these problem locations, that you have not gotten

         25  satisfaction from the Department of Buildings,
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          2  because we all know how bad that agency is, I will

          3  be more than happy to look into each individual

          4  case.

          5                 MR. MORGULIS:  Thank you very much.

          6  I appreciate it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  The next

          8  panel--.

          9                 MR. ASKARINAM:  I am sorry, could I

         10  add one more item?

         11                 I have petition from hundreds of

         12  people with me here.  Would you like to keep them or

         13  should I--.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Sure.

         15                 MR. ASKARINAM:  Thank you.  They

         16  could not be here but I got their voice right here.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  No, that is

         18  fine.  I am glad you are giving it to us.

         19                 Okay, the next panel--.

         20                 MR. ASKARINAM:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: -- is a panel in

         22  opposition, Cary Rubin, Vicky Miele, Noah

         23  Teitelbaum, and Andrew Katz.

         24                 MR. RUBIN:  Hi, I am one of five

         25  families that is being negatively affected by the
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          2  downzoning proposal on East 14th Street between

          3  Avenue N and Avenue O.

          4                 There is an old saying that the map

          5  is not the territory, and I think--.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I am sorry,

          7  staff just told me, you did not mention your name.

          8  You have got to mention your name for the record.

          9                 MR. RUBIN:  Oh, my name is Cary

         10  Rubin.

         11                 There is an old saying that the map

         12  is not the territory, and that is what seems to have

         13  happened here.

         14                 While trying to pursue the laudable

         15  goal of avoiding ugly and out of place buildings,

         16  our zone classification has been extended to an area

         17  that includes houses that were not well designed to

         18  begin with, that are older and in poor condition,

         19  that have no community assets in their back yards,

         20  alleys that are basically just usable for egress,

         21  houses that already consume several driveways, and

         22  something that Councilman Felder acknowledged is

         23  that most homeowners in this neighborhood do not

         24  even know what is going on.

         25                 You have to ask yourselves, just like

                                                            25

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  your constituents who worried about taxation, how

          3  would they respond if they knew that this

          4  legislation was going to cost them several hundred

          5  thousands of dollars in property value, that it

          6  would prohibit them from making extensions on their

          7  homes, or enlarging rooms which many of these people

          8  will want to do because the incoming community is

          9  very prolific.  It is becoming a Hasidic

         10  neighborhood, and they have large families, and have

         11  these needs.

         12                 The particular properties that we are

         13  talking about on East 14th Street, between Avenue N

         14  and Avenue O, are between two large existing

         15  apartment houses, half of them are shaded by the

         16  Southern Apartment House.  We have approached this

         17  very responsibly.  We are going to have a

         18  stipulation in our sales contract to protect some

         19  older trees that are neighborhood assets, so we do

         20  not have to worry about their loss.

         21                 What we have heard today is about

         22  unscrupulous developers and incompetent architects,

         23  but that is not a zoning problem.

         24                 The question is what should be built

         25  here in a city that is growing.  The New York Times
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          2  reported that the city is expected to grow to over

          3  nine million people by 2025.  There is a housing

          4  crisis in the City that is going to get worse.

          5  People are living longer than ever before, and we

          6  cannot expect the same level of turnover.

          7                 So what we are hoping is, we would

          8  prefer that it stay R6, but if it has to change, a

          9  compromise to R5, or at least delaying the effective

         10  date of legislation so that sales that are pending

         11  could go through.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 MR. KATZ:  My name is Andrew Katz.  I

         14  live 1708 Ocean Avenue, this is between L and M on

         15  Ocean Avenue.

         16                 As you look at the map, Ocean Avenue

         17  is a corridor of apartment houses, designated for

         18  7A.  This niche between L and M on the west side of

         19  Ocean Avenue should not be downzoned.

         20                 Ocean Avenue is a corridor of

         21  apartment houses, and to downzone six or seven

         22  private homes, which most of the homeowners are

         23  here, is not fair, and definitely since there is a

         24  need for additional housing, this is the prime Ocean

         25  Avenue corridor to put them in.

                                                            27

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 Thank you.

          3                 MR. TEITELBAUM:  Hi, my name is Noah

          4  Teitelbaum.  I am the owners of 1704 Ocean Avenue,

          5  right next to Andy Katz here. Vicky Miele to my left

          6  is the homeowner of the next building.

          7                 We are three of the four individual

          8  residences remaining on the west side of Ocean

          9  Avenue between L and M.  The fourth individual

         10  resident owner is also with us, he is a doctor, he

         11  is practicing and could not come today.

         12                 Basically, we are the people who are

         13  effected by the downzoning of the west side of Ocean

         14  Avenue between L and M to 5B. We are asking that it

         15  made 6A.

         16                 MR. KATZ:  7A.

         17                 MR. TEITELBAUM:  Well, it cannot be

         18  7A because it is out of scope.

         19                 It should have been 7A as part of the

         20  original city planning -- I think the City Planning

         21  design is a good plan.  I think it could be made

         22  better because in this case, there was an oversight

         23  in an attempt to look at, I guess, the aesthetic

         24  look of the street which has, as I said, back

         25  because of an easement the city made up a hundred
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          2  years ago to build a trolley line on the side of

          3  Ocean Avenue.  But the homeowners, all of whom have

          4  owned their property for many decades, are all in

          5  agreement and have signed a petition to that effect,

          6  which Vicky has distributed.

          7                 You have got two handouts on your

          8  desk, let me just briefly look at the one with the

          9  blue covering on it, and go through it very quickly.

         10

         11                 You will notice on the first page,

         12  you see East 19th Street, East 19th Street on that

         13  block, between L and M, is built up with six- family

         14  homes.  As a matter of fact, East 19th Street

         15  between L and M is the only block, outside of Ocean

         16  Avenue in the rezoning, that was zoned 7A.

         17                 Now, the buildings on the west side

         18  of Ocean Avenue sit in the shadow of those

         19  buildings.  You look on Figure 4 on the second page,

         20  and they are overwhelmed by those buildings.  There

         21  are people like ourselves in those houses, cannot

         22  get full value as people can on the side streets

         23  because there are apartment houses abutting their

         24  backyards.  So it diminishes the value of the

         25  property.
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          2                 On the other hand, it is only worth

          3  value as a buildable property because it is on a

          4  corridor of buildable homes.            The City

          5  Planning zone talks about the context of

          6  propinquity, things next to each other.  There is

          7  also a context of critical mass, and the critical

          8  mass of this whole neighborhood is between L and M.

          9                 If you look on the last page of my

         10  hand out, it shows an aerial view of Ocean Avenue.

         11  On the left of Ocean Avenue are all apartment

         12  houses.  On the right, the entire scene is one

         13  family homes.  Ocean Avenue is an actual divider

         14  between Avenue L and M between apartment houses and

         15  single- family homes.  If you look across the street

         16  to the east side of Ocean Avenue, you can see the

         17  sky, there is nothing behind it.  If you look to the

         18  west at our homes, all you see are apartments.

         19                 I think it makes sense to make Ocean

         20  Avenue between L and M on the west side into a 6A,

         21  at least so there would not be medical facilities,

         22  and that would sort of--.

         23                 MR. KATZ:  7A.

         24                 MR. TEITELBAUM:  We cannot make it

         25  7A.  It should have been but we think it was an
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          2  oversight in the original design but we think 6A

          3  certainly is the least we have all agreed to as the

          4  people affected by the zoning on this particular

          5  block.

          6                 I have handouts of the map if you

          7  want.

          8                 MR. KATZ:  This is the Ocean Avenue

          9  corridor, R7A.           This is the proposed

         10  rezoning between Avenue L, and 100 feet north of

         11  Avenue M.  Our houses are over here, the six or

         12  seven houses on the west side of Ocean Avenue.  This

         13  is the west side of Ocean Avenue, this is all

         14  apartment houses.  There are apartment houses here,

         15  there are apartment houses here.  The whole corridor

         16  of Ocean Avenue except for this little niche, which

         17  they want to take out.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 MS. MIELE:  Hi, my name is Vicky

         20  Miele.

         21                 I also handed the second handout.  If

         22  you would look at that second handout, either the

         23  last page or the next- to- the last page, there is

         24  an aerial view showing the apartment buildings

         25  completely surrounding our single- family and multi-
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          2  family homes.

          3                 We are completely overshadowed by

          4  those buildings, and we cannot sell our homes to

          5  other people who want to buy small homes because

          6  they look at the apartment buildings, and they say

          7  they do not want to buy the property.

          8                 So, we are asking you to instead of

          9  downzoning that little strip, to 5B, to downzone it

         10  to a 6A instead.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.

         13                 Any questions?

         14                 We are going to the next panel which

         15  is in favor, Hersh Binder, and Zev Cohen.

         16                 MR. COHEN:  My name is Zev Cohen.  I

         17  have reside at 1451 East 13th Street, it is a little

         18  bit down the block by one of these homes that was

         19  discussed earlier.

         20                 It seems to me that there are three

         21  types of people here today.  People like myself who

         22  are homeowners who are concerned about their

         23  children.  The weather is nice, they are playing

         24  outside.  These type of buildings, a lot of them

         25  have medical offices whose coming, besides the
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          2  problems with parking, the real concern to people

          3  like myself is the- our children, who are going to

          4  be on the streets now.

          5                 It seems to me the other two types of

          6  people who are here today are developers, or people

          7  who want to sell, who need to sell and therefore,

          8  they are raising concerns about the R6, the

          9  downzoning.

         10                 It seems to me the council should

         11  take into consideration the homeowners, the people

         12  who are here to stay, who are worried about their

         13  children as opposed to the monetary concerns.

         14                 I am not such a great public speaker

         15  but that is basically, I think, the jist of what I

         16  want to say.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 MR. BINDER:  My name is Hersh L.

         19  Binder.  I live on East 13, between N and O.

         20                 First of all, I just want to thank

         21  the commission for taking the time to listen to the

         22  residents.  I have to thank Mr. Felder for pointing

         23  out that, unfortunately, we only ascertained what is

         24  happening as far as the Zoning Commission when a

         25  problem arises with developers putting in plans to
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          2  erect larger structures.  I guess people are in the

          3  dark until they are told or informed.  So, I would

          4  like to thank Simcha Felder, and I would hopefully,

          5  the Commission would put that legislation through

          6  that all the homeowners should be informed if any

          7  changes are made.

          8                 I am just going to reiterate what my

          9  neighbor had mentioned.  The neighborhood, I have a

         10  family of children, the interest of the community

         11  are, of course, to have children and the young,

         12  vibrant community.  All that increased traffic and

         13  development, all that will do is just put the

         14  children at risk.

         15                 I understand from the side of the

         16  developers, of course, they want to have more

         17  housing and the Commission has to take that into

         18  account but the residents who are there currently,

         19  again not the sellers, not the buyers right now, the

         20  residents who are there right now, they should be

         21  taken primary- there concern is primary, and the

         22  commission should take their interest first.

         23                 Thank you for your time.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.

         25                 Next panel is a panel in opposition.
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          2  Sanford Solny, Josh Rubenstein, Dionisio Hirtenfeld,

          3  and Yitzhak Pastreich, excuse me if I mispronounced

          4  the name.

          5                 MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Good morning members

          6  of city council, good morning to the commission,

          7  good morning Councilman Felder.

          8                 I am actually a, I am sorry, good

          9  morning, I am not a good public speaker as well.

         10                 My name is Josh Rubenstein.  I am a

         11  resident, somewhat, of the neighborhood.  I live a

         12  few blocks away, which this downzoning does not

         13  concern, but I happen to be a developer as well.

         14                 I just wanted to bring to light,

         15  obviously, most of the people sitting here are in

         16  opposition to myself and I do understand.  I have a

         17  family, I have three children of my own.

         18                 I understand that people do not like

         19  overdevelopment but what I would like to point out

         20  is that there is a reason that there is

         21  overdevelopment.  Midwood is a very -- it is a prime

         22  neighborhood, it is where people do want to live.  I

         23  recently looked to purchase a home three years ago.

         24  I could not afford $700,000, $800,000, $900,000 to

         25  purchase a home.
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          2                 However, these developments, it is

          3  true that there is construction and it does, for the

          4  time that the construction is going up, it does hurt

          5  the community to a certain extent.  But, it does

          6  make it much more affordable where you can have a

          7  three bedroom condo apartment with two bathrooms and

          8  a kosher kitchen, if it is in the Jewish community

          9  for $400,000, which I would purchase as a starter

         10  home, and I think that is very valid.

         11                 I do understand the concern.  In my

         12  developments I do put underground parking because

         13  that is a concern.  Not all developers do put

         14  medical, some do, some do not, and I think that is,

         15  for the most part, what I would like to shed a light

         16  on.

         17                 Thank you so much.

         18                 MR. HIRTENFELD:  My name is Dionisio

         19  Hirtenfeld.  I live on Ocean Avenue between Avenue L

         20  and M.  Previous opposition was from the same block,

         21  and all I am asking is that leave things as they

         22  are.  Leave it at 6B.

         23                 Ocean Avenue from Avenue L, all the

         24  way up to Prospect Park is apartment buildings, all

         25  the way from Avenue M, almost all the way to the
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          2  Atlantic Ocean it is apartment buildings, except our

          3  block has been- they are trying to rezone it so, I

          4  am asking the Committee to please rethink it.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 MR. SOLNY:  Honorable council

          7  members, elected officials, my name is Sanford

          8  Solny.  I am a long time resident of Midwood, and I

          9  am also an attorney, and I have clients with issues

         10  involved in this rezoning.

         11                 I want to begin by thanking all those

         12  involved in preparing the zoning.  It is an

         13  important piece of legislation, and I think almost

         14  everyone would admit that this will help the

         15  neighborhood.

         16                 However, there are two flaws in the

         17  zoning which would adversely impact the Midwood

         18  residents.

         19                 What sets Midwood apart from other

         20  areas such as Homecrest and Sheepshead Bay, is that

         21  we have a very large Orthodox population with large

         22  families.  Some have six or more children. The

         23  borough president was very conscience of this in his

         24  recommendations.  In page 14 of the zoning proposal,

         25  the borough president recommended to investigate the
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          2  rezoning to an R5A district for the remaining areas

          3  proposed to be rezoned as R4- 1. The R4- 1 District

          4  has a FAR of only .9.  As the zoning proposal

          5  states, 25 percent of those houses in that area are

          6  already above that, and the other 75 percent are

          7  either at it, or very close to it.  Zoning is

          8  supposed to be a long- term proposal.  The last

          9  zoning came into effect in 1961.  We have had it for

         10  45 years, and we have to look to the future.

         11                 If at any time someone wants to

         12  enlarge his house due to a larger family, he has to

         13  go through a variance process. It is very expensive.

         14    There are a lot of attorneys fees involved. It

         15  takes a lot of time, and people are not going to be

         16  able to do it.

         17                 So we, therefore, request that the

         18  borough president's recommendation that it be

         19  rezoned to an R5A, which is approximately 1.25 would

         20  be the FAR.  That would eliminate the condo

         21  development but at the same time, it would be

         22  reasonable for people who live there to expand their

         23  houses.

         24                 One other area is that the borough

         25  president also recommended that the area on the
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          2  north side of Avenue P be rezoned to R6- A, and I

          3  have prepared handouts on that.  The entire south

          4  side of Avenue P is already commercial.  It has a

          5  large Greek Orthodox church.  It has Conways' Store

          6  parking lot.  It has apartment buildings, and the

          7  south side also has several development sites, and

          8  it has two synagogues, two medical centers, and that

          9  is a prime area for relocation.

         10                 If you want to keep the young people

         11  in our community, we have to have space for them to

         12  expand, and therefore, we believe that the borough

         13  presidents' recommendation also should be accepted

         14  in that area.

         15                 Just in closing, many of the builders

         16  are not big builders, they are not Donald Trump,

         17  they only found out about this in the winter when

         18  the community board started to hold hearings, and

         19  the proper builder does not pour a foundation in the

         20  winter. So, there is a lot of builders who are stuck

         21  with, it is not 45 degrees, they are not going to

         22  pour the foundations, and they have made big

         23  investments in the area.

         24                 So, I believe that anything that is

         25  passed that would limit the zoning, the builder
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          2  should be given at least a 30 day grace period in

          3  order to properly put in the foundation, and the

          4  builders who did a sloppy job and did it when it was

          5  freezing, they are not the ones that should be

          6  rewarded.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Just want to

          9  make one comment on that.

         10                 In any eventuality, if there is

         11  somebody who is caught in the middle, whether it is

         12  a developer or a homeowner, inadvertently caught in

         13  the middle, there is an expedited case that you can

         14  take to the Board of Standards and Appeals.  It has

         15  to be done within 30 days of the change of the

         16  zoning.  It is not a full blown variance procedure.

         17                 So, it does enable a homeowner or

         18  developer caught in the middle to make an appeal.

         19  So, there is a process.

         20                 Next speaker.

         21                 MR. PASTREICH:  Hi council members.

         22  My name is Yitzhak Pastreich.  My family has owned

         23  this property for over 50 years.  We own a property

         24  on Ocean Avenue between Avenue L and M.

         25                 First, I would like to congratulate
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          2  the chairman of the committee, and Councilman Felder

          3  on realizing that the largest impediment is that we

          4  only discovered it was all getting rezoned. At the

          5  same point that the city council has total access or

          6  the City of New York to everybody address via tax

          7  bills, it is a horrible, gross injustice.  I think

          8  it is certainly true of us, I think it may be true

          9  of other property owners.

         10                 That having been said, I really feel

         11  that this council should wait, and as people

         12  cognizant of what they are affording the homeowners

         13  who have missed this opportunity, I think there

         14  should be a real hearing after notification to the

         15  affected property owners.  Hundreds of thousands of

         16  dollars of people's property is going to be

         17  affected, with no notification whatsoever. And I

         18  guess I know it is published in a book by New York

         19  City, but nobody actually reads it except a couple

         20  of zoning lawyers.  I discovered it.  I brought it

         21  to the attention of my neighbors on this block, and

         22  that is why you have heard from them this morning.

         23                 That having been said, there was one

         24  other block on Ocean Avenue that was similarly

         25  affected.  They apparently discovered it early.
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          2  They came before the Planning Board, and the

          3  Planning Board changed that.  We basically got

          4  told,`you are right but it is too late in the

          5  process,' and I think that is a gross injustice that

          6  I hope this council will work to remedy for us.  We

          7  are surrounded by apartment houses.  We are on a

          8  huge, wide street, and we really should not be

          9  downzoned.  It is an injustice.  It is unfair.

         10                 That having been said, I truly do

         11  believe as the person sponsoring the legislation,

         12  you should give the affected property owners their

         13  proverbial day to get a hearing.

         14                 If you vote this without giving them

         15  that opportunity, they will not be getting the

         16  hearing that you and the other members of this

         17  council, in terms of Mr. Felder's earlier comments,

         18  are in favor of.

         19                 Thank you for listening to me.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Council Member

         21  Felder.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Thank you.

         23                 I do not know how this should be

         24  done, but I am curious, you know the maps that were

         25  furnished on the Ocean Avenue, particularly this
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          2  property, it is not in my- most of this downzoning

          3  is not in my district at all.  In fact, I just have

          4  a sliver.  But that piece that they keep on talking

          5  about, is there any opportunity where zoning can

          6  come back and explain?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  You are jumping

          8  the gun.  We are not finished yet.  Let me get to

          9  that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Okay, thank

         11  you.

         12  You mean I am ahead for a change?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Yes, you are

         14  ahead.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  After we have

         17  heard from all of the speakers, I have asked City

         18  Planning to come back, and then I will make a

         19  recommendation.

         20                 Thank you, gentlemen.

         21                 The last panel in favor is Margie

         22  Nussbaum, and Mrs. Nadler, and I assume that is the

         23  end of the speakers for this item.

         24                 MS. NADLER:  Hi, my name is Barbara

         25  Nadler.  I live on the corner of Avenue O and East
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          2  18th Street.

          3                 Basically you could say in a way I

          4  would be on both sides of the matter because I have

          5  a private house that I would love to do an extension

          6  to.  But right now, the issue is that these

          7  monstrosity buildings are going up, it is ruining

          8  our area.  We live on a beautiful residential block,

          9  all private one or two family homes, and all of a

         10  sudden they are building this, well, it is not

         11  actually built yet, but they got the foundation down

         12  in the nick of time, and basically I suppose they

         13  can build whatever they want because I went down to

         14  the Building Department to see what actually is

         15  going to be built, and it shows a three- family

         16  house with a six- foot basement, yet they dug down

         17  25 feet, and when I spoke to somebody at the

         18  Building Department he says,`R6 zone, they can do

         19  whatever they want, so they dug down 25 feet, maybe

         20  they will refill it at the end with dirt.'  We know

         21  they are not. When I asked them particularly what

         22  they are building, they said to me,`oh, we are

         23  building a six- story building but do not worry, it

         24  will be beautiful.'

         25                 It is not what the neighborhood
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          2  needs.  It is not what we want.  We really have such

          3  a beautiful area right now, and besides the fact

          4  that now I have to hire lawyers because they dug so

          5  close and so not carefully, I suppose, to my

          6  garages, caving in on the sides, but I called 311, I

          7  do not know what will happen after that, but it is

          8  just- it really very upsetting.

          9                 So, if you could really get this

         10  downsizing in, that would be very wonderful.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  You mentioned

         12  that the developer has undermined your property?

         13                 MS. NADLER:  He dug in his property,

         14  but right

         15  next--.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Which is

         17  affecting your foundation?

         18                 MS. NADLER:  We are totally cracked.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  You called 311,

         20  you have not heard back or anything?

         21                 MS. NADLER:  It was only about a week

         22  and a half ago that we noticed it, so then we

         23  called.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  But still, I

         25  mean they should have sent an inspector out
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          2  immediately.

          3                 MS. NADLER:  I have not heard

          4  anything.  Maybe they did, but I did not hear

          5  anything.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  If you want, can

          7  somebody get her name and address, because I will

          8  look into that for you.

          9                 MS. NADLER:  I would really

         10  appreciate that.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 MS. NUSSBAUM:  Hi, my name is Margie

         13  Nussbaum.  I live on East 19th Street between Avenue

         14  N and O, and we have a very similar situation taking

         15  place.

         16                 Right across the street from me, at

         17  1472, let me backtrack a minute, our block is an

         18  absolutely beautiful block, also one- family and

         19  two- family homes, many young children playing on

         20  the block, with a wonderful quality of life.

         21                 Several months ago, 1472 East 18th

         22  Street was sold, ostensibly to a doctor, was sold to

         23  a doctor who ostensibly was going to erect a three-

         24  story structure on that site.  The three story

         25  structure on that site just last week, was changed
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          2  to a five story structure.  The excavation is going

          3  from border to border on either side, he has

          4  compromised, the excavation has compromised the

          5  driveway of the neighboring home and the garage,

          6  which is also caving in.  An inspector was there

          7  this past Friday, saw the structure to the

          8  neighboring property and to the garage, called his

          9  superiors at the Building Department, and his

         10  superiors told him to get off the site.  His

         11  superiors told him to get off the site, that the

         12  damage would be rectified later.

         13                 In the meantime, he is building

         14  directly to the property line, he is completely and

         15  totally going to block the windows and the light of

         16  the adjoining house on the left, and as I said just

         17  as is happening over here on O and East 18th Street,

         18  the driveway is cracked, the garage is caving in,

         19  and the Building Department told the inspector,`get

         20  off the site.'

         21                 Needless to say, the quality of life

         22  on this block is being threatened very badly.  I

         23  will also add that in the process of this

         24  excavation, we have had work started at 6 o'clock in

         25  the morning, we have had vibrations going on that
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          2  have shaken the houses on both sides of the block,

          3  from one end of the house to the other.  We have

          4  called 311, and we have received very poor response

          5  if at all, and right now we are all stuck.  At risk

          6  is the value of our property.  At risk is the

          7  quality of life of our property, and the safety and

          8  security of our children.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I am going to

         10  close the public hearing on this item, but I will

         11  ask City Planning to come back and comment on some

         12  of the issues that have been raised.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 While Regina is being seated, most of

         15  this application lies within Council Member Mike

         16  Nelson's district. He is in favor of the

         17  application.  He would be here this morning but I

         18  understand he had to take his wife to the hospital.

         19  So, we all hope that his wife if going to be okay.

         20  But he is in favor of the application, and wanted me

         21  to say that publicly

         22                 MS. MEYER:  I wanted to introduce

         23  Aday Amowally (phonetic), he is the project manager

         24  for this project, and has been a key staff person in

         25  helping us--.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  State you name,

          3  please.

          4                 MS. MEYER:  I am Regina Meyer,

          5  Brooklyn Office Director of City Planning

          6  Department.

          7                 I did want to comment especially on

          8  two things.

          9                 There was a large amount of testimony

         10  relating to the R4- 1 proposal as a part of this

         11  rezoning.  When we did our research in terms of the

         12  existing context, we noted a number of things that

         13  lead us to the conclusion that R4- 1 was the

         14  appropriate district.  More than 75 percent of the

         15  buildings in that area are below the FAR of .9 in

         16  that district, and furthermore, we found that more

         17  than 50 percent were at or below .6 FAR, so there is

         18  room for expansion for most of the homes in this

         19  rezoning area.  I know that it is a significant

         20  community issue.

         21                 The R4- 1 district does permit a

         22  combination of detached, semi- detached and semi-

         23  detached homes, and you did receive testimony

         24  relating to the R5A district, that was a district

         25  that we did look at for this area.  Unfortunately,
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          2  we found that since that district is very

          3  restrictive it only permits detached homes, that is

          4  was not appropriate for this area because of the mix

          5  of housing here.

          6                 Board 14, and we worked closely with

          7  them as well as with Mike Nelson and his staff,

          8  really did request a rezoning that matched closely

          9  with the context here, and that was why we felt that

         10  the R4- 1 was the appropriate district, and I think

         11  finally you understand that since the R5A is more

         12  restrictive, it is out of scope at this time.

         13                 So, those are sort of our- I sort of

         14  wanted to give to you some of our thinking on the

         15  R4- 1 area.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I would like you

         17  to comment on the issue that a number of the

         18  homeowners here were talking about for that section

         19  on Ocean Avenue, between M and L.

         20                 I mean, I have a number of the

         21  pictures, and I can from the overhead shots, aerial

         22  shots, and they have a legitimate argument, I mean,

         23  how did you feel about that?

         24                 Did you look at that?

         25                 MS. MEYER:  Sure, I think that, and I
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          2  think that you can appreciate this, the issue of the

          3  R6 districts in Brooklyn have been an issue that has

          4  been percolating or been under discussion for

          5  several years, and when we started this effort, it

          6  was clear that community residents really cared

          7  about the changing character of Ocean Avenue.  Ocean

          8  Avenue is perhaps the most visible corridor in the

          9  district, and people drive up and down, north and

         10  south, and so they really had that as their image of

         11  the area.

         12                 When we stated this effort, we asked

         13  people,`do you want us to preserve any of the low-

         14  rise buildings on Ocean Avenue?' The answer we got

         15  was that they did.  Obviously I think, as you have

         16  seen and heard, there has been some unfortunate

         17  building along Ocean Avenue, in both this area and

         18  especially in Homecrest, and I think that our

         19  proposal was largely in response to that.  It is

         20  true that this is an apartment house corridor, north

         21  and south, in the borough and so I really do not

         22  want to respond further than that.  I think you have

         23  heard a lot of testimony on that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Under the

         25  circumstances, and Council Member Mike Nelson's aid
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          2  is here, and I asked him what does the council

          3  member feel about that one specific block, and I

          4  think the council member has expressed interest in,

          5  perhaps, taking another look at that down the road

          6  in perhaps a follow- up corrective action.

          7                 So, I think you need to have some

          8  conversation with Council Member Nelson after today,

          9  but I think in the long run, obviously, we want this

         10  to move ahead expeditiously, the council member

         11  does, so it will be out intention to pass this thing

         12  out. But in terms of that one little block on, I

         13  guess, the west side, I think you need to follow up

         14  with Council Member Nelson.

         15                 MS. MEYER:  Absolutely, so the area

         16  you are looking at is the west side of Ocean Avenue.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Right.

         18                 MS. MEYER:  Between L and M?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  It is L and M.

         20                 MS. MEYER:  L and M, perfect, I just

         21  wanted to make sure I understood.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Yes, we are only

         23  talking about that.

         24                 MS. MEYER:  One block face.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Yes, because
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          2  they do make a legitimate argument in my opinion.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 MS. MEYER:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I am sorry

          6  Simcha, did you have a question?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Yes, I just

          8  wanted to add that I keep on- to confirm what the

          9  Chair said because I keep on looking down the map.

         10  Unless you can explain it, there are only two spots

         11  that between L and M, that you made R5B, and then

         12  there is like one side of Ocean Avenue, which no one

         13  seemed to have talked about.  I do not think so,

         14  between N and O, that was sort of different.  If you

         15  understand it, that is great.  I do not understand

         16  it.  I do not know what the purpose, but as a matter

         17  for the public, I think that usually we defer to the

         18  council member in whose district it is.

         19                 So, I would say that personally I am

         20  going to vote in favor if he feels strongly about

         21  it, but if something can be done to correct it, I

         22  think it would be fair.

         23                 MS. MEYER:  We will follow up.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.

         25                 We will now move onto the next item
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          2  on the agenda, which is Land Use Number 70, commonly

          3  referred to as the Union Utopia Rezoning, C060235

          4  ZMQ.

          5                 We also have City Planning, John

          6  Young to give the presentation.

          7                 MR. YOUNG:  Good morning Chair

          8  Avella, council members, ladies and gentlemen.

          9                 My name is John Young, and I am

         10  Director of the Queens office for the Department of

         11  City Planning.

         12                 On behalf of City Planning Director

         13  Amanda Burden, I am very pleased to be here this

         14  morning in regard to the Departments' efforts to

         15  update zoning designations for more than 80 blocks,

         16  containing more than 2,200 single- family

         17  residential lots framed by Union Turnpike and Utopia

         18  Parkway in the Fresh Meadows area of central Queens.

         19                 I am joined by Rob Holbrooke, who

         20  will present our rezoning proposal to you.

         21                 I just want to briefly introduce it.

         22  For this proposal, the Department has used one of

         23  the most recently created contextual zoning tools,

         24  the R2A district, which will have its first

         25  anniversary in nine days to address the concerns of
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          2  residents that recent development trends are

          3  producing overscaled houses that are undermining the

          4  areas originally established built character.      This

          5  contextual rezoning is the first major update to the

          6  areas low- density, and as I said, single- family

          7  zoning framework since 1961.

          8                 Protecting the appealing qualities of

          9  the area, which include its low density and

         10  consistent built scale has been an important goal

         11  for the local civic associations, including West

         12  Cunningham Park, Utopia Estates and Fresh Meadows

         13  Homeowners Associations, and it has been the

         14  Departments' privilege to have worked closely with

         15  them since the adoption of the R2A district last

         16  spring.  There have been a number of meetings with

         17  them to shape and refine this proposal.

         18                 We know it has taken considerable

         19  effort to reach this point, but we could have not

         20  made it here without their contributions,

         21  particularly to go out and confirm the database that

         22  we used.  Likewise, Council Members James Gennaro

         23  and David Weprin have provided valuable assistance

         24  during the rezoning process.

         25                 We are very pleased to have received

                                                            55

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  the support from Community Board 8, which held

          3  hearings in January, as well as Borough President

          4  Marshall.  We hope that you too will support this

          5  well considered rezoning initiative to ensure the

          6  distinctive character of this neighborhood.

          7                 Now Rob will briefly review the

          8  details of the proposal.

          9                 MR. HOLBROOKE:  Good morning council

         10  members. Again, my name is Rob Holbrooke, Department

         11  of City Planning.

         12                 I believe I just handed out maps to

         13  each of you, and there are copies here on the board.

         14                 This area is in central Queens,

         15  significant landmarks around here are St. John's

         16  College, directly to the southwest, Cunningham Park

         17  is directly to the east in this area. The general

         18  boundaries are Utopia Parkway to the west, 64th

         19  Avenue to the north, 197th Street to the east, and

         20  Avon Place to the south.  On the southern boundary

         21  of this rezoning is the Grand Central Parkway, and

         22  on the north, the Long Island Expressway.

         23                 The entire zoning in this area is R2

         24  today.  The R2 is a single- family, detached

         25  residence only with the floor area ratio of .5.
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          2                 I have some images of some of the

          3  buildings that have been produced in this area, and

          4  last summer we were contacted by the civic

          5  associations of this area, Fresh Meadows, Utopia

          6  Estates and West Cunningham Park, and they were

          7  concerned with the out of character development that

          8  was occurring.

          9                 As you can see, the images on the

         10  top, there is a very consistent uniform character in

         11  these neighborhoods, generally one and a half to

         12  two- story homes with significant front yards and

         13  open space.

         14                 The images on the bottom of this map

         15  are new developments that have occurred in that

         16  place, generally buildings have been torn down or

         17  replaced with buildings that are out of character,

         18  as high as three stories, and generally do not match

         19  the distinct character of the neighborhood.

         20                 To address this, we have proposed an

         21  R2A over the entire area.  The R2A is also a single-

         22  family detached residence district with a .5 floor

         23  area ratio.  The significant difference between

         24  these two districts is the envelope that is

         25  available.  On the R2A you are only allowed to build
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          2  a 21- foot streetwall height, basically two stories,

          3  and a maximum 35 foot building height restricting

          4  the size of new buildings in this area.  That is a

          5  concern for many of the property owners in this

          6  area, their ability to expand to their full use of

          7  the property.  We did an extensive study on this

          8  topic, mostly using the help of civic associations.

          9  They allowed us to confirm the lot coverage and

         10  height of the buildings that are there today, and we

         11  did some analysis to see how many homes would be

         12  able to be expanded, and under the R2A we have found

         13  that 83 percent of these homes would be able to

         14  fully utilize their floor area ratio, either in a

         15  vertical addition, adding additional height, or a

         16  horizontal addition utilizing additional lot

         17  coverage.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Any questions?

         20                 Thank you, gentlemen, pretty

         21  straightforward.

         22                 We have one person signed up in

         23  opposition, Varda Mizrahi.

         24                 MS. MIZRAHI:  I live in 184- 20 64th

         25  Avenue, Fresh Meadow.
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          2                 I really did not know that the zoning

          3  will be changed.  I only heard about it three weeks

          4  ago, and I went to Houses (sic) to talk to them, and

          5  they were very upset about it and they said some of

          6  them did not know also about it, that they were

          7  changing the zoning.

          8                 I have 500 people who signed that

          9  they are against it, they very upset that they

         10  changing the zoning, and all of them are young

         11  people.  The old people is against it, but all the

         12  young people bought their houses very expensive

         13  there, and they do not want the zoning to be

         14  changed.  They are very, very upset about it. I have

         15  all the people here who signed, 500 people signed,

         16  that they against it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  You do know that

         18  the community board and the borough president

         19  approved it, and all the civic associations in the

         20  area did approve it.

         21                 MS. MIZRAHI:  I know that, I only

         22  know about it three weeks ago that they changing the

         23  zoning.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Well, can you-

         25  you can give us a copy of the petition, we will take
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          2  a look at it.

          3                 MS. MIZRAHI:  Yes, I will.  I will be

          4  happy to.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  You have go to

          6  give it to the Sergeant- At- Arms.

          7                 Speak into the mic.

          8                 MS. MIZRAHI:  Okay, I did not know

          9  that I am supposed- I brought the real one, not the

         10  copies, and I did not know that I am supposed to

         11  give a copy, so I did not make a copy of all of

         12  them, only some I happened to have.  So, she gave me

         13  the address.  I do not know her name, I am sorry,

         14  and she said I can send it to her.  Is that okay?

         15                 I can show it to you now, I have them

         16  here.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Madam, give the

         18  copy to the Sergeant- At- Arms.  We will look at it,

         19  but we may take a vote right now, in a little while,

         20  so there would be no point in sending us the rest of

         21  the petitions.  You could, but we may vote on this

         22  in the next half hour.

         23                 So, in the meantime I will take a

         24  look at the rest of them.

         25                 MS. MIZRAHI:  Okay, can I give you
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          2  the real one, and then you give it me?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Yes, and we will

          4  give it back to you.

          5                 MS. MIZRAHI:  Okay, I will be happy

          6  to.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Okay, thank you.

          8                 If there is no one else signed up to

          9  speak--.

         10                 MS. MIZRAHI:  I probably have here

         11  like about 350, but Sam has the rest.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  That is fine,

         13  that is fine.

         14                 Council Member Jackson.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Good

         16  morning.

         17                 Miss, Miss, over here, sit down.

         18                 MS. MIZRAHI:  Shall I go there?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  No, why

         20  don't you sit down and let me talk to you.

         21                 MS. MIZRAHI:  Okay, I am sorry.  This

         22  is the first time I came here.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  That is

         24  okay.

         25                 MS. MIZRAHI:  Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Welcome, now

          3  you said you live at 184- 20 64th Avenue, Fresh

          4  Meadow.

          5                 MS. MIZRAHI:  Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And I was

          7  looking at the map, that is near the edge of, near

          8  the corner of 184th Street, I am looking at the map,

          9  it is at the top end of the zoning.  Is that

         10  correct?

         11                 MS. MIZRAHI:  That is a corner house.

         12    It is 183- 20 64th Avenue.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And what is

         14  your primary objection to the rezoning?

         15                 Why are you objecting to the

         16  rezoning?

         17                 MS. MIZRAHI:  Why?  Because I have

         18  four children.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Go ahead.

         20                 MS. MIZRAHI:  And I would like them

         21  to have a space, and not only me, all the young

         22  people who bought their houses in Fresh Meadow, very

         23  expensive, a lot of them Orthodox, and they have a

         24  lot of children, and they need the space for it.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So you are
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          2  saying that you have four children or three

          3  children.

          4                 MS. MIZRAHI:  I have four children of

          5  my own.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

          7                 MS. MIZRAHI:  It is not enough space.

          8    I need to build for them.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Do you have

         10  a one- family home?

         11                 MS. MIZRAHI:  Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You do.  And

         13  so, what do you visualize?

         14                 You are saying you have four children

         15  and they

         16  need--.

         17                 MS. MIZRAHI:  Four children of my

         18  own.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes, but

         20  what would you visualize happening with your

         21  property?

         22                 MS. MIZRAHI:  I mean, I like to build

         23  for my children so they have a space, so if they are

         24  going to change the zoning, it is not going to be

         25  enough space because I want to build a storage room
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          2  also on the top, and I will not be able to if they

          3  change the zoning.

          4                 Not only me, there is all these

          5  people who signed, 500 people signed.  They are all

          6  young, they want to build for their children too.

          7  They have a lot of kids.  A lot of Orthodox people

          8  has ten children some of them, and they want to

          9  build.  They want have a space for the kids.  That

         10  is why they are very upset about it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Chair

         12  Avella, it is my understanding in the listening to

         13  the City Planning Commission that came before she

         14  spoke, my understanding that there was room for

         15  growth as far as on the sides of the property, and

         16  even a little further up if, in fact, people wanted

         17  to do that.

         18                 Is that correct?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  If I may

         20  interrupt.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Sure.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  One of the

         23  things that City Planning is very careful about is

         24  not, and I use the term`shrink wrapping' houses.  So

         25  that, in effect you cannot do any expansion. I mean

                                                            64

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  R2A is the single most restrictive zoning in the

          3  City of New York today.

          4                 However, City Planning would not

          5  recommend it unless a majority, and a significant

          6  majority of the homes could not do an expansion.

          7                 I just asked if City Planning had the

          8  specifics on her home.  Do we know that?  We do not.

          9    But on the one hand, it is a balancing act.  Will

         10  there be some people who may be negatively effected

         11  in any rezoning action?  And that is correct because

         12  there is no such thing as a 100 percent perfect

         13  plan.

         14                 So, I mean, there are some people who

         15  may be at the max.  There may be some people who may

         16  be above it, but City Planning would not recommend

         17  this zoning classification in an area where it is

         18  predominantly underbuilt.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  How many

         20  petitions did you say you have from homeowners?

         21                 MS. MIZRAHI:  I have 500, I have

         22  about 350 here but Sam has the rest.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Now you are

         24  saying these are 500 homeowners?  Not like 500

         25  people who own homes?
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          2                 MS. MIZRAHI:  Homeowners, they

          3  signed.  They are all young.  The old people

          4  complain but not the young people.  Young people

          5  wants to build for their own kids.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Miss, it

          7  does not matter to me if they are young or they are

          8  old.  It really does not matter to me.  What matters

          9  to me, whether or not, as far as signatures, if they

         10  are homeowners.

         11                 MS. MIZRAHI:  They are homeowners.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  It does not

         13  matter if they are young or old.

         14                 MS. MIZRAHI:  They are homeowners.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, okay,

         16  so you are saying that one of the objections is that

         17  they did not know about it.

         18                 Did I hear you say that?

         19                 MS. MIZRAHI:  A lot of people did not

         20  know about it. When I went to their houses, they

         21  told me,`we did not know about it.'  And I did not

         22  know about it, I know only three weeks ago.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And how did

         24  you find out about it?

         25                 MS. MIZRAHI:  From the Building
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          2  Department, from the Zoning.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Did they--.

          4                 MS. MIZRAHI:  The one who was talking

          5  now.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Did they

          7  come and knock on your door?  Did they send you a

          8  letter?  Did you read it in a community paper?  Was

          9  it posted on a lamppost?  How did you find out about

         10  it?

         11                 MS. MIZRAHI:  No, I got a letter only

         12  three weeks ago.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  How did you

         14  find out?

         15                 MS. MIZRAHI:  That they are changing

         16  the zoning.  I did not get any letter before that.

         17  Three weeks ago I got a letter that they want to

         18  change the zoning from R2 to R2A.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Three weeks

         20  ago?

         21                 MS. MIZRAHI:  Yes, only three weeks

         22  ago.  I did not get any letter, and a lot of people

         23  told me that they did not know about it either.

         24  They were very, very upset about it.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  Mr.
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          2  Chair, is it possible that hearing what this

          3  resident had to say, I could just hear what City

          4  Planning has to say in relationship to that?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Sure, we can

          6  call City Planning back.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  My only comment

          9  Ma'am is if there are 500 people opposed to this,

         10  where are they?

         11                 I have to say this honestly, I am

         12  just looking at you.  Usually, usually, when there

         13  is this much opposition, if this is correct, we

         14  would have this room packed.  We would have heard

         15  about it well before this public hearing.

         16                 MS. MIZRAHI:  Okay, I--.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Now one of the

         18  things, and I am not saying you have done this, but

         19  within Queens there has been a lot of misinformation

         20  about some of the rezonings spread by the developers

         21  and the Queens division of the AIA, which is the

         22  Architects Association, and I know when previous

         23  petitions have been submitted, they have been rather

         24  confusing.

         25                 Now, this one just says,`I am opposed
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          2  to the R2A.' Did you fully inform everybody when

          3  they were signing this position as to what it really

          4  meant in terms of the zoning?  Because somebody

          5  might sign a petition--.

          6                 MS. MIZRAHI:  No, no.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: -- and say,`I do

          8  not know anything about the zoning, so I am going to

          9  sign my name.'

         10                 MS. MIZRAHI:  No, I did explain it to

         11  everybody that R2 they will be able to build on the

         12  top like an attic, like a storage room, and R2A they

         13  will not be able to.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  But you cannot

         15  say that Ma'am because that is not true because

         16  every house is not the same, and you just made a

         17  generalization for every house in that district.   Houses

         18  can expand, and this is why it becomes very

         19  difficult to explain to people.  You just cannot

         20  say,`oh, we are changing the zoning, we do not like

         21  this.'  Because City Planning, again, would never

         22  suggest this if there was not a significant

         23  opportunity for most of the homeowners to expand.

         24                 What I am going to do, is I am going

         25  to call City Planning back to comment on your
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          2  testimony.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 MS. MIZRAHI:  But can I answer you?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  No.

          6                 MS. MIZRAHI:  Your question?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  No, I think we

          8  understand what your point is, Ma'am.  We

          9  understand.

         10                 I would like to call City Planning

         11  back at this point.

         12                 MS. MIZRAHI:  Oh, okay.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  John.

         14                 MS. MIZRAHI:  Some people did

         15  understand me, and they do not want to change the

         16  zoning because they are young, they want more space

         17  for their children.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Ma'am, your

         19  point has been made.

         20                 MR. YOUNG:  I know there is concern

         21  about, again, the issue of expansion and the whole

         22  process, and the whole process of how homeowners

         23  found out about the rezoning, in addition to what we

         24  are going to discuss.  I am sure the civic

         25  associations that are here today can discuss some of
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          2  the outreaches that they have done to their

          3  membership.  But in particular, again, just to

          4  review the whole expansion issue, since that is the

          5  issue of the previous speaker, okay we did the

          6  analysis of the more than 220 buildings in the study

          7  area, and found that, first of all, 17 percent of

          8  them are overbuilt.  There is no ability for them to

          9  expand today because under this rezoning we are not

         10  changing the maximum floor area ratio.  It is .5

         11  today, it is .5 with the new zoning proposal. All

         12  that we are doing is really removing the way that

         13  the floor area ratio has been abused in terms of

         14  taking advantage of what is supposed to be accessory

         15  spaces and spaces that are commonly very minor into

         16  the overall construction of a house, and expanding

         17  them and stretching them in ways that really are not

         18  intended by the zoning.  So, we have tightened the

         19  floor area exemptions, and we have tightened the

         20  envelope, so that the heights of the building now

         21  are more clearly understood for all people building

         22  and residing into the area.  There is a 21 foot

         23  perimeter wall height, instead of a 25 foot maximum

         24  front wall height.  There is a 35 foot building

         25  height, a building height that by the way is the
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          2  same building height in a n R32 zone, which has a .6

          3  FAR, and an R4 zone that has a .9 FAR.  So, it is a

          4  fairly still flexible overall building height.

          5                 And then, to recap the numbers that

          6  Rob shared with you, all of the properties that can

          7  expand, there are about 1,880 or 83 percent, and in

          8  terms of that expansion they can either expand

          9  vertically, straight up, we have found that that is

         10  actually the predominant characteristic, only 8

         11  percent would not be able to expand vertically, and

         12  then the others can expand horizontally, outward on

         13  their lot.

         14                 So that out of all of these

         15  properties that we surveyed that have unused floor

         16  area today, and will retain unused floor area in the

         17  future, there are only two, and these were more

         18  recently constructed buildings, that have no ability

         19  to expand either vertically or horizontally.

         20                 So we really think there is still

         21  flexibility in terms of homeowners having reasonable

         22  opportunity to use the rules as they were always

         23  intended to expand.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Council Member

         25  Jackson.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you,

          3  and my question, and I appreciate your explanation,

          4  but let me ask you a question as far as the process.

          5

          6                 The previous witness testified that

          7  as a homeowner, she only received notice

          8  approximately three weeks ago, and that many of the

          9  residents signed a petition, she indicated,

         10  objecting to the rezoning and/or that they were not

         11  notified.

         12                 What is the process that City

         13  Planning Commission uses, if any, to notify the

         14  residents of the affected area?

         15                 What is the normal process, and did

         16  you do that in this situation?

         17                 MR. YOUNG:  We certainly followed the

         18  normal process, and I know there has been some

         19  discussion already this morning, should this process

         20  be improved?

         21                 Can it be a better assurance that

         22  everybody--?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Explain it

         24  to me, please. Explain to me what the process is.

         25                 MR. YOUNG:  Well, the process for the

                                                            73

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  Department is publishing notices in certain

          3  publications, primarily the City Record, for

          4  whenever a rezoning is certified, begins its public

          5  review, and then at upcoming milestones.

          6                 In addition, we put this information

          7  on our website. The website is updated for each

          8  upcoming public hearing, and we have had a number of

          9  meetings with the civic associations informing them

         10  where that information can be found on our website.

         11                 In addition, obviously, the community

         12  board when it is holding its public hearing, issues

         13  notices, and in this case, we worked very closely

         14  with the council members and they sent mailings to

         15  every registered voter in- or I think we gave them

         16  the address, it is actually every address that was

         17  actually in our database for the properties that we

         18  were proposing to rezone.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  If I can

         20  interrupt your testimony, John, because you reminded

         21  me of something that Council Member Gennaro

         22  specifically told me.  I think he did three

         23  mailings.  He did a mailing when the application was

         24  certified.  He did a mailing after the community

         25  board voted.
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          2                 He has gone well beyond what anybody

          3  would do for notification.  So I think if anybody

          4  says that they were not notified in this instance,

          5  not correct.

          6                 Councilman Gennaro did mailings to

          7  everybody, and several throughout the entire

          8  process.  I am glad you reminded me of that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  That process

         10  normally starts to take place like, we are in the

         11  process of voting it out of committee now.  From a

         12  process point of view, does that process take place

         13  one month before, two months before, six months

         14  before, a year before?

         15                 MR. YOUNG:  Most of the notification

         16  occurs once the project enters its formal public

         17  review.  That began on December 19th, so that is

         18  when the information was first posted on our

         19  website.  Subsequent to that, have been when these

         20  mailings have gone out.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So that is

         22  approximately within the range of approximately

         23  three to three- and- a- half months?              Is

         24  that correct?

         25                 MR. YOUNG:  That is right, that is
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          2  right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, all

          4  right, thank you.

          5                 MR. YOUNG:  Sure.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.

          7                 The public hearing on this item is

          8  closed.

          9                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  (Inaudible)

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Okay sorry, we

         11  did not see your slips.  I was wondering why you

         12  guys were not testifying.

         13                 We will call you all up in one panel.

         14    Bob Harris, Joan Hausmann, Ashook Ramsaran and

         15  James Gallagher.

         16                 MS. HAUSMANN:  My name is Joan

         17  Hausmann, I am with the Fresh Meadows Homeowners

         18  Civic Association, and the lady who just testified

         19  does live in our area.

         20                 We have all witnessed how the

         21  character of our neighborhoods has changed.  Houses

         22  are demolished, and then new houses are built

         23  towering over its neighbors.  The .5 FAR is very

         24  often ignored or self- certified by the architect.

         25  Many new homes do not conform to the approved plans,
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          2  and only after the Building Department inspects for

          3  C of O request, new amended plans are submitted and

          4  approved.  Many of these amended plans go way over

          5  the .5 FAR.

          6                 In R2 third- floor attics, even

          7  though they have rooms up there are not counted in

          8  FAR because of the R2 loopholes that do not count

          9  sloped roof areas.  Also not counted in R2 is the

         10  entire floor that houses a garage.  That could very

         11  often include a living room, dining room, kitchen,

         12  dinette and bathroom.  If you do not count that

         13  floor with a garage, just think of all the

         14  additional horizontal and vertical extensions that

         15  could be built.               There is several

         16  houses in our area that have detached garages but

         17  the owners have put a beam across from the garage to

         18  the main floor of the house to make it an attached

         19  garage, and take advantage of that major loophole in

         20  the R2 zoning.

         21                 Our civic association covers

         22  approximately 830 homes, almost 57 percent of the

         23  families pay membership dues each year.  All of our

         24  flyers and quarterly newsletters are mailed to each

         25  household whether they are paid members or not.
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          2                 A special meeting on rezoning flyer

          3  was mailed out prior to the May 24th, 2005 meeting

          4  when explanations of the proposed rezoning R2A were

          5  made to those present.  Almost 200 people attended

          6  that meeting.  The flyer also stated in bold

          7  italics, in two very visible places, that a vote

          8  would be taken. The vote at the May 24th meeting was

          9  unanimous in favor of pursuing rezoning.

         10                 The FMHCA June 2005 newsletter

         11  invited readers to a June 27th membership meeting to

         12  hear Robert Holbrooke and Deborah Carney (phonetic)

         13  of Queens City Planning.  The newsletter also had a

         14  full report on the May 24th meeting.

         15                 Our November 2005 newsletter had an

         16  update on the rezoning in the President's Column.  A

         17  public hearing flyer originated by Community Board 8

         18  was supplied to us, and that also was mailed to all

         19  our civic area residents.

         20                 We must protect the people who in the

         21  past bought their homes here because they liked what

         22  they saw, and wanted to live in this neighborhood.

         23  Homeowners can still expand vertically and

         24  horizontally but within reason and limits, and there

         25  will be mutual respect between old and new members
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          2  of the community.

          3                 I am also the financial secretary of

          4  the Fresh Meadows Homeowners Civic Association.  Our

          5  listing includes, I would say, we are more of a U.N.

          6  Area than anything else.  There are not that many

          7  Orthodox people living in our civic area of 830

          8  people.  Also, Councilman Gennaro had sent out two

          9  or three letters to our area.

         10                 MR. ASHOOK:  Good morning honorable

         11  Chairman, Councilman Tony Avella, thank you very

         12  much for giving us this opportunity.

         13                 My name is Ashook Ramsaran, a long-

         14  time resident of Fresh Meadows, and an officer of

         15  Fresh Meadows Homeowners Civic Association.

         16                 I firmly believe it is my duty and

         17  obligation to come here and provide support for this

         18  application.  Firstly as a homeowner, and secondly,

         19  as one who truly cares about our neighborhoods, and

         20  the quality of life that is such an integral

         21  attribute of the pride we take as individual

         22  residents and communities in the many neighborhoods

         23  that comprise New York City.

         24                 I moved with my family to this

         25  neighborhood years ago for the quality of life it
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          2  provided.  Its character, its inherent appeal and

          3  attractions, a place that redeemed consistency of

          4  character, its access of transportation in schools,

          5  and its active interest of the residents themselves

          6  added to making this a good place to live and raise

          7  a family.

          8                 I am in favor of the rezoning

          9  application from R2 to R2A, and I urge this Body to

         10  consider the will of the residents and give its

         11  approval as well.

         12                 I have worked very diligently with

         13  others in this effort, Fresh Meadows Civic, the

         14  other civics, our elected officials, City Planning,

         15  John Young and Robert Holbrooke, and the residents

         16  because I consider it a worthwhile cause, a noble

         17  effort as a means of preserving the quality of life,

         18  and retention of the character of our neighborhoods.

         19                 These attributes of our neighborhood

         20  are the appealing qualities that attracted us there

         21  in the first place.  As residents, we did not move

         22  and we stayed in the neighborhood despite the

         23  onslaught of recent development changes for what it

         24  is when we moved there.

         25                 Bayside has opened our eyes and
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          2  thanks to the Chairperson Avella for opening that

          3  avenue for us.  We oppose the onslaught out of place

          4  monoliths that dwarf our home and our way of life.

          5                 I urge this committee to support the

          6  application for rezoning because it is the right

          7  thing to do.  As I stated earlier, we should be

          8  remembered for what we preserve, rather than what we

          9  destroy.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 MR. GALLAGHER:  Good morning

         12  honorable Chairman Tony Avella, distinguished

         13  council members of the Zoning and Franchise

         14  Subcommittee of the New York City Council.

         15                 My name is James Gallagher, Jr., and

         16  I am speaking on behalf of the Fresh Meadow

         17  Homeowners Civic Association, as their longtime

         18  president.

         19                 We are requesting your approval for

         20  this application.  As previously stated by the other

         21  executive board members of the Fresh Meadows Civic

         22  Association here present this morning, we have

         23  notified everyone in our civic area by mail on

         24  numerous occasions of the rezoning from R2 to R2A.

         25  In fact, it was the people of the community who
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          2  begged the civic association to pursue the applying

          3  of this zoning correction as I consider it, a zoning

          4  correction from R2 to R2A.  This should have been

          5  done many, many years ago going back to your zoning

          6  resolution in 1961.

          7                 We even had a special meeting of the

          8  Fresh Meadows Civic Association on May 25th, which

          9  you have a copy of, which was devoted to this one

         10  topic of rezoning, and our guest speakers that

         11  were Pat Dolan, President of the Kew Garden Hills

         12  Civic Association, and very knowledgeable in the

         13  zoning area, and also Paul Graziano, an urban

         14  planner.  That night as Joan had mentioned, a vote

         15  was taken, a unanimous vote of over 200 members of

         16  the civic association, and there was no opposition.

         17                 In June, the Queens Civic Congress

         18  met at the Hillcrest Jewish Center.  The Queens

         19  Civic Congress is an umbrella organization of over

         20  200 civic associations- over 100 civic associations,

         21  excuse me, in the Queens area, and that night we

         22  were addressed by John Young and other members, and

         23  Paul Graziano and so forth, explaining the R2A to

         24  everybody.

         25                 Then we had another meeting of our
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          2  civic in June and we also explained the R2 to R2A to

          3  everyone.

          4                 Then in- oh boy, there goes my two

          5  minutes, okay we are asking for your assistance.  It

          6  has gone before the community board, we have had a

          7  number of public hearings, and also we want to thank

          8  John Young and his organization, and his group and

          9  City Planning, and also Councilman David Weprin, and

         10  of course, Councilman Gennaro for keeping the

         11  community informed as to when everything was going

         12  on.  We could not have done it without them.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 MR. HARRIS:  Good afternoon, or good

         15  morning.

         16                 My name is Bob Harris.  I am

         17  President of the West Cunningham Park Civic

         18  Association.  I am on Community Board 8.

         19                 We are in agreement with everybody

         20  here.  We are for the correction, we want R2A.  We

         21  have carefully followed the procedures and going

         22  back two years, we have been notifying our

         23  community, back in December, January, 2004, our

         24  civic newsletter had the front picture showing no

         25   `McMansions' and no Pathmark, which they wanted to
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          2  build in our neighborhood which is not going to be

          3  built.

          4                 Then on April 27th, we had a

          5  newsletter- a meeting, newsletter, Paul Graziano

          6  spoke, John Young was there, and so was Bob

          7  Holbrooke and Patricia Dolan.

          8                 We had another civic newsletter

          9  September 2005 discussing the issue, in fact, I had

         10  a little push there to say they had not rezoned us

         11  yet, so I was giving it a little push back in

         12  September 2005.

         13                 The full public hearing, the first

         14  big one, in Ryan Junior High School, over 400 people

         15  there, only 8 people were for it, one was a builder,

         16  and one owned a lot of property.

         17                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  No, eight were

         18  against it.

         19                 MR. HARRIS:  What?  Oh, eight were

         20  against it.

         21                 Most people there seemed to be for

         22  it, and this is how we mailed this notice out to

         23  everybody in our neighborhood, my column in the

         24  Fresh Meadow Times said that in Canada they call

         25  them `monster houses', and that is how I wrote it in
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          2  this column.  This is the post office receipts that

          3  on May 17th, 2005 we mailed out 1,330 newsletters.

          4                 On September 13th, 2005, we mailed

          5  out newsletters. On December 7th, 2005, newsletters.

          6    On December 3rd, 2005, we also sent out 1,300

          7  newsletters.

          8                 Our neighborhood wants the rezoning,

          9  and everybody has spoken for it.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Council Member

         12  Jackson has just asked if could see those copies of

         13  the newsletters.  We will give them back to you

         14  before you leave obviously.

         15                 MR. HARRIS:  Sure.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Council Member

         17  Jackson.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, first

         19  of all I would like to thank you all for coming in

         20  and giving testimony concerning the proposed

         21  rezoning.

         22                 It appears as through, based on your

         23  testimony, that both the Fresh Meadows Homeowners

         24  Civic Association and your documentation here shows

         25  your newsletters and the information that you cited,
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          2  that it was on the front page, that votes were taken

          3  and so forth and so on, which would clearly indicate

          4  at the least to the members of your civic

          5  association, that everyone who was a member had the

          6  opportunity, whether they took advantage of that

          7  opportunity is another thing, to be notified of what

          8  you were trying to do.

          9                 How many homeowners are there in a

         10  civic association compared to the area in which that

         11  are zoned, in your opinion?  Is it 50 percent, is it

         12  75 percent, is it 10 percent?  Or is it about 90

         13  percent, do you have any idea?

         14                 MS. HAUSMANN:  Are you talking about

         15  paid members?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes, I am

         17  talking about paid members, let me just finish.

         18  Because you said that the newsletter was sent to all

         19  paid members.

         20                 MS. HAUSMANN:  All members, all

         21  residents.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  All

         23  residents?

         24                 MS. HAUSMANN:  All residents, 830.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And all of
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          2  the residents that are impacted by the zoning?

          3                 MS. HAUSMANN:  That is all that are

          4  in the Fresh Meadows Homeowners Civic Association.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, now

          6  let me ask you a question.  What percentage of the

          7  Fresh Meadow Civic Association, is that 30 percent

          8  of the rezoned area?  Is it 50 percent, or is it 75

          9  percent in your opinion?

         10                 In your opinion, anyone could speak

         11  for the organization, I am just asking a question.

         12  Approximately?

         13                 MR. HARRIS:  I would say about one-

         14  third.  I believe it is 2,700 homes that are

         15  affected by this area, and ours is about 830.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And you

         17  belong to another organization, Sir?

         18                 MR. HARRIS:  The West Cunningham Park

         19  Civic, yes, 1,200 homes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And that is

         21  also in the proposed rezoning area?

         22                 MR. HARRIS:  Yes, there are three

         23  civics involved, Utopia State Civic also.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And I assume

         25  that Utopia State Civic is in favor of the rezoning
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          2  also?

          3                 MR. HARRIS:  Yes, they hand delivered

          4  all their material.

          5                 We mail all our material to everybody

          6  in the neighborhood, either says`name' or`resident'.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You mean of

          8  the--.

          9                 MR. HARRIS:  Everybody in my area.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Not only

         11  members, now your membership, is that dues paying

         12  membership also?

         13                 MR. HARRIS:  Yes, about 40 percent.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So not only

         15  to your paid members, but everybody in the affected

         16  area of your civic association, is that correct?

         17                 MR. HARRIS:  The mailing labels

         18  say`name' or`resident', and it goes to every single

         19  home in the neighborhood.               We have

         20  labels for every home, paid or not paid.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So, is it

         22  safe for me as a member of this committee knowing

         23  that what you have done, meaning the Cunningham

         24  Civic Association with the Fresh Meadows Homeowners

         25  Civic Association and the Utopia Civic Association,
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          2  that anyone that wanted to know about this

          3  particular matter, if they were reading the papers

          4  or if they are reading the newsletters, they should

          5  know if they really want to know about it?

          6                 Is that safe to assume?

          7                 MR. HARRIS:  Yes, I think you are

          8  right, yes, you are correct.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes Ma'am?

         10                 MS. HAUSMANN:  Our addresses are, my

         11  address appears on the mailing label of all the

         12  bulletins, every bulletin.  We have been in

         13  existence for 23 years.  We have bulletins four

         14  times a year.  Every person sees my name in the

         15  return address.  Jim's

         16  e- mail address and his phone number is in every

         17  bulletin, so there is no question about somebody you

         18  could ask.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Now Miss,

         20  what is your position with the civic association?

         21                 MS. HAUSMANN:  I am the financial

         22  secretary, and the bulletin editor.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay,

         24  because you raised the issue in your testimony about

         25  Orthodox families.  Now, my understanding is it does
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          2  not matter whether you are Orthodox or not Orthodox,

          3  whether you are young or you are old, or whether you

          4  are black or white, that does not matter.

          5                 Am I correct?

          6                 MS. HAUSMANN:  Correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, then

          8  so I am curious because it seems as through that

          9  issue is being raised, and I do not really see that

         10  as being significant.

         11                 MR. HARRIS:  The lady brought it up.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Whether or

         13  not someone is Orthodox or not Orthodox, or whether

         14  they are black or white, or young or old.

         15                 What I understand is that the

         16  residents of this community deem that this is the

         17  appropriate rezoning.

         18                 Is that correct?

         19                 MS. HAUSMANN:  Correct, the only

         20  reason I brought it up is because the lady who

         21  testified before us brought it up.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Two wrongs

         23  do not necessarily make a right, is that correct?

         24                 MS. HAUSMANN:  All right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Is that
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          2  correct?

          3                 MS. HAUSMANN:  All right, you are

          4  correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, I am

          6  just curious because I do not want this situation to

          7  cause tension with Orthodox and non- Orthodox, with

          8  blacks or whites, or Jews or Gentiles, or Muslims.

          9                 This is about residents of the

         10  community feeling that the, I guess, the over

         11  expansion in your opinion needs to be capped.  Is

         12  that correct?

         13                 MS. HAUSMANN:  Correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, all

         15  right.

         16                 MR. RAMSARAN:  May I make a comment,

         17  please?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Sure.

         19                 MR. RAMSARAN:  I have a business

         20  property--.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  State your name.

         22                 MR. RAMSARAN:  Ashook Ramsaran from

         23  Fresh Meadows Civic.

         24                 I have a business property in College

         25  Point, which is under the constituency of the
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          2  Chairperson, and there was a plan change, rezoning,

          3  and the notification we got was from the civic, just

          4  the same way we -- our civic informed our residents,

          5  and that is the mechanism which was used

          6  successfully over there to inform the residents.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, all

          8  right.  Thank you very much.

          9                 Thank you Mr. Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I would only add

         11  that I also did a mailing on that.

         12                 MR. RAMSARAN: Yes, you did.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I did not do as

         14  extensive a mailing as Council Member Gennaro does,

         15  but I do a mailing to every resident, every voter in

         16  any rezoning in my district.

         17                 MR. RAMSARAN:  And your response was

         18  prompt.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you, now I

         20  will close the public hearing on this item.

         21                 We will move to Land Use Number 90,

         22  commonly referred to as Caton Place, application

         23  submitted by 22 Caton Place Corporation, changing

         24  from a R6 District to a R7A District property bound

         25  by Caton Place and other streets.  There has also
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          2  been a modification by City Planning so as is effect

          3  changing from an R6 District to an R7B District.

          4                 MR. MITZNER:  Good morning Chair

          5  Avella, members of the subcommittee.

          6                 My name is Marvin Mitzner.  I am the

          7  attorney for the developer of 22 Caton Place.

          8                 We have filed an application to

          9  rezone a portion of the south side of Caton Place

         10  from an R6 zoning, which I believe the subcommittee

         11  has heard from, in terms of that zoning, earlier

         12  today, the site is located on the south side of

         13  Caton Place.  It encompasses 22 Caton Place, as well

         14  a portion of the building at 81 Ocean Parkway, which

         15  under current zoning, under current R6 zoning, is

         16  overbuilt.  What we had proposed, the R6 zoning

         17  would permit the developer to construct a 12- story

         18  tower and locate it anywhere on the site, surrounded

         19  by parking spaces.

         20                 As you have heard earlier, the R6

         21  zoning has little controls, and what we have

         22  proposed was an R7A zone, which would be a

         23  contextual Quality Housing zone.  It would extend

         24  the R7A zone, which is currently along Ocean Parkway

         25  and the north side of Caton Place, and allow us to
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          2  construct an R7A Quality Housing building on our

          3  site, which is this piece right here.

          4                 It would allow us to construct an

          5  eight in  six story building.  It would contain

          6  about 68 units, and 50 percent parking.  We have

          7  made that proposal to the City Planning Commission.

          8                 In response to some concerns by the

          9  community in terms of development, overdevelopment,

         10  in the area, and they have expressed those concerns

         11  to City Planning, City Planning reported out an R7B

         12  zone for the site.  The R7B zone would reduce the

         13  maximum height from the 80 feet permitted under R7A

         14  to 75 feet, allowing us to construct a seven in five

         15  story building.  It has a 50 percent parking

         16  requirement, which would be at grade in the open

         17  space, and that is the application as reported out

         18  by City Planning.

         19                 Since that event, the community has

         20  expressed concerns about parking, particularly

         21  above- grade parking, and the 50 percent parking

         22  requirement than the R7B.  We have engaged in some

         23  intense discussions with the community over the

         24  course of the past week or two, and particularly

         25  over the past weekend, and what we have looked at is
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          2  an R7A zone with a number of commitments made by the

          3  developer to address the concerns expressed by the

          4  community.

          5                 Under the R7A zoning, the building

          6  envelope would have eight in six stories.  What we

          7  have created is a 16 foot side yard that would

          8  separate the building from the building at 81 Ocean

          9  Parkway, allowing lot- line windows along Ocean

         10  Parkway to remain and providing additional light and

         11  air at this portion of the site.             We have

         12  also most recently looked at and committed to

         13  extending a recess that is located along Caton Place

         14  to extend that southward to provide more light and

         15  air.

         16                 This shows the building, the eight-

         17  story building with the six- story setbacks.  What

         18  we have agreed to do is extend this setback down

         19  along the south side to provide more light and air

         20  to that portion of the site.  We have also agreed

         21  and committed to 100 percent parking all below

         22  grade.  That would allow the substantial open space

         23  which is right at this portion of the site to be

         24  landscaped, and that would certainly help out the

         25  homeowners in back of the site here, and along East
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          2  8th Street, and they have expressed some concerns

          3  about what their backyards would look upon, and we

          4  have agreed to keep this as open space, and also to

          5  landscape it.  We will confer with them in terms of

          6  the type of landscaping that they would like to see

          7  there.

          8                 We have also changed our program

          9  somewhat.  They expressed the desire that larger

         10  apartments in the area are needed, and we have

         11  committed to 80 percent two and three bedrooms as

         12  opposed to mostly studios and one bedrooms.  This

         13  will be a rental building.  We are looking at having

         14  tenants in here that are more stable, and therefore,

         15  the larger two and three bedrooms apartments are

         16  more appropriate.

         17                 We have also committed to providing

         18  20 percent of the units for moderate income housing.

         19    We have looked at the New Haupt (phonetic)

         20  Program.  We have committed to 20 percent units, at

         21  125 to 150 percent of AMI.

         22                 We will be conferring with HPD in

         23  terms of the programs available under that scenario,

         24  and we have also committed that, if in fact, we do

         25  not use the HPD program, either because the building
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          2  is too small or other considerations, we will

          3  nevertheless, set aside 20 percent units at that

          4  basis for rental.

          5                 We have also agreed to extend street

          6  trees along Caton Place, look to community- based

          7  architects for their input in terms of design of the

          8  building to make sure it fits in with the

          9  neighborhood and the area.

         10                 And finally, we have also agreed not

         11  to apply for after hours or weekend permits for

         12  major construction work, so that our construction is

         13  minimally disruptive to the community, and I might

         14  say that all these commitments will be laid out in a

         15  letter from the developer.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  This project

         17  lies within Council Member Bill deBlasio's district,

         18  he is here and I know he wants to say something but

         19  before he does that, I am a little confused.

         20                 As part of your testimony you eluded

         21  to a commitment with the community to do certain

         22  things, and the council member, but you said 7A.

         23                 MR. MITZNER:  That is correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  So are you

         25  suggesting that the Council modify it, because right
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          2  now it is 7B.

          3                 MR. MITZNER:  I am suggesting that

          4  the council modify the application, refer it back to

          5  City Planning to determine whether it is within

          6  scope.

          7                 Since we filed the application as an

          8  R7A and the environmental review was based upon R7A

          9  zoning, we believe it would be within scope.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Council Member

         11  deBlasio.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  Thank you,

         13  Chair.

         14                 Let me just start by saying I know a

         15  lot of folks from our community are here, and the

         16  developer and his folks.

         17                 Let me first start by thanking you,

         18  Chair Avella. You have been extremely interested in

         19  this development from Day 1, and you have given us a

         20  lot of very helpful guidance and I want to just

         21  thank you for always being willing to engage this

         22  issue, and also as always, for supporting community

         23  concerns, which it is very nice to know that when

         24  these issues get adjudicated that the person

         25  chairing the process really is sympathetic to the
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          2  communities needs.  So, I thank you for that.

          3                 I want to also say at the outset, and

          4  I will be brief.  I think everyone involved in this

          5  process, the developer and his representative, Mr.

          6  Mitzner, and all of the community activists,

          7  everyone has tried in good faith to communicate.  I

          8  think it has been a much healthier dynamic than in

          9  many, many other situations we have all experienced,

         10  so I want to thank everyone for that fact.

         11                 I particularly want to thank the

         12  community leaders. I know that in these final days,

         13  not everyone had agreed on everything.  I think

         14  everyone's point of view is inherently legitimate,

         15  and I think because again, we have all seen, if I

         16  may editorialize, we have seen community activists

         17  who might be in it reasons other than the public

         18  good.

         19                 I think in this case, everyone has

         20  been working with real integrity to try and figure

         21  out a solution for a part of my district that is

         22  experiencing rapid growth, and it one of those areas

         23  that I think a lot of people have lived in a long

         24  time, or moved into experiencing and expecting, sort

         25  of, a fairly low- scale, certain quality of life,
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          2  and they see rapid change, and I think everyone has

          3  responded to that honestly and tried to find a

          4  solution.

          5                 There has also been an extremely

          6  impressive effort to try and get to a consensus of

          7  all of the community members and activists, which I

          8  have appreciated very much.  I do not think the

          9  consensus is perfect at this point, but I do think

         10  the clear majority believes strongly that the

         11  original concept, which was endorsed by the borough

         12  president and the City Planning Commission of

         13  instead making this an R7B designation, that that is

         14  the appropriate way to go.

         15                 So, I want to endorse that idea, and

         16  I also want to say that I think, and I think it is

         17  important to frame this one other point.  Throughout

         18  this process, there have been moments where the R7A

         19  was appealing in concept, and I think the list of

         20  possibilities that Mr. Mitzner laid out are

         21  certainly things I care about deeply, the affordable

         22  housing and more parking, underground parking, et

         23  cetera.

         24                 I think if that was not in conflict

         25  with the virtues of a lower designation, maybe we
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          2  would have made more progress because, again, this

          3  designation is forever in effect, it may be for this

          4  developer or this developer may sell, and it may be

          5  for another developer.

          6                 And it also has a huge ramification

          7  for what happens in all the surrounding areas, so if

          8  we were simply talking about a plot of land that has

          9  no relevance to anything else around it, maybe we

         10  would have all found our way to the R7A more

         11  comfortably but, in fact, this is precedent setting

         12  for a larger neighborhood and that is part of why

         13  people felt so strongly, including again, borough

         14  president and City Planning that the R7B was more

         15  appropriate.  It is still an upgrade, but it does

         16  not take us into such a point of gathering momentum

         17  for further development and further congestion.

         18                 The other point is, despite the good

         19  faith on the developers part I have noted, I have

         20  also experienced situations where developers or

         21  anyone in public life has offered more in the way of

         22  guarantees.  Again, I see a good faith effort but

         23  not one that I think everyone in the community, nor

         24  myself, were able to say we were certain of where it

         25  was going.
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          2                 I believe, I think Mr. Mitzner just

          3  said that they were looking at HPD options in terms

          4  of affordable housing, I appreciate that.  I do not

          5  think that is the same thing as having gone far

          6  enough down the line that people had assurance that

          7  something would definitely happen.  So, I think

          8  there is a cognisance among community leaders,

          9  again, there is no guarantee if this plot of land

         10  were rezoned R7A, that the current developer would

         11  retain the plot of land.  There is nothing that

         12  forces him to do it, and we have no clue what a new

         13  developer might want to do, nor is there despite the

         14  assurances around affordable housing, for example,

         15  there is no guarantee that it would actually take

         16  place, particularly when no particular subsidy or

         17  program has been engaged at this point.

         18                 So for all those reasons, and I say

         19  again, it is not a perfect outcome or one I am

         20  entirely pleased about, but I think the R7B is the

         21  best outcome.

         22                 I also want to emphasize a smaller

         23  point but very important to the people who live

         24  immediately around the site. There has been

         25  consistency in all discussions, whether about 7A or
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          2  7B of providing some space between any new building

          3  and the existing buildings.  In particular, for our

          4  friends at 81 Ocean Parkway, that is a huge deal.

          5  That is literally peoples apartments.  They have

          6  been there a long time, that would loose windows and

          7  loose light and access to the open air.  I think it

          8  is crucial that this developer or any developer

          9  ensure, at least eight feet, if not more on each

         10  side of this development, no matter what the outcome

         11  here.

         12                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         13                 MR. MITZNER:  May I just --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Sure, sure,

         15  quickly.

         16                 MR. MITZNER:  Very briefly, I do want

         17  to thank Council Member deBlazio and the community

         18  for making those available for discussions, but I

         19  would like to respond very briefly.

         20                 What I have indicated is that we will

         21  look to HPD, but irrespective of how HPD responds,

         22  we are committing to 20 percent affordable units at

         23  that level.  So even if no HPD program is available

         24  or our discussions with HPD are not successful, we

         25  will set aside 20 percent of those units.
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          2                 Secondly in terms of the developer,

          3  this developer has a land lease, so he is locked

          4  into his lease, it is not assignable.  He is not

          5  going any place.  He has got to keep these as rental

          6  units.  He cannot do condos because it is a land

          7  lease. So, he is committed to going forward with

          8  development as described, which is a rental

          9  building, just the way I described it, and I think

         10  those are assurances that the community should

         11  recognize.

         12                 I believe many members of the

         13  community, in fact, have recognized it, and I know

         14  that we have solicited and number of petitions, and

         15  do have a number of signatures that support the R7A,

         16  with the conditions we proposed.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Sure, Council

         18  Member deBlasio.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  Mr. Chair,

         20  if you will indulge me one quick response to the

         21  response.  I do not want to belabor this by any

         22  stretch.

         23                 I respect the answer.  We all

         24  understand that guarantees that do not have some

         25  material evidence of actual progress or
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          2  implementation are more questionable than those that

          3  do.

          4                 So, you have said it very

          5  consistently, and I give you accolades and you are

          6  saying it publicly, and that matters, again, there

          7  is still discomfort that there is not more evidence

          8  to back it.

          9                 But the second point, I appreciate

         10  the lease and I appreciate the conditions of the

         11  lease, but the land still can be sold, in fact, and

         12  I know you said you were not aware of this but our

         13  staff went on- line and the land is listed for sale

         14  on a website, a realtors website.

         15                 So again, I am a trusting person, a

         16  lot of people in the community are trusting people,

         17  but if that land might be sold six months from now,

         18  and something entirely different goes, then these

         19  guarantees are harder to believe and we have to,

         20  therefore, go back to the core question,`should this

         21  community be upzoned a little or upzoned even more?'

         22                 I think a lot of us started with a

         23  bias that there should not be any upzoning because

         24  of what is happening in the broader area.  I think

         25  there was a willingness to compromise on the 7B, but

                                                            105

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  in the absence of the kind of more tangible progress

          3  or guarantees that people could believe in more

          4  thoroughly, it is understandable that they were not

          5  comfortable going past 7B.

          6                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.

          8                 If there are no other questions, we

          9  will go to the public hearing of this item.

         10                 I am going to call up one panel in

         11  favor, one

         12  panel- actually two panels in favor and one panel in

         13  opposition.

         14                 I have a David Loeser, I guess who is

         15  the developer, he is not testifying, right?

         16                 MR. LOESER:  (Unintelligible)

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  He does not have

         18  to testify.

         19                 MR. LOESER:  I am not the developer,

         20  I represent the developer.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Well, it says

         22  here you represent the developer.

         23                 MR. LOESER:  I work with him but I am

         24  also a member of the community.  I live there, so.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Okay, David
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          2  Werner, Mandy Harris, and June Reich.

          3                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Mr. Chair, I

          4  am sorry Mr. Chair.  The witnesses, there are

          5  different viewpoints on the panel, you do not mind

          6  that, right?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  No, in fact, I

          8  was going to say that because now we have- this is a

          9  unique situation.  So, if you are in favor of the

         10  project as 7B, so state that.

         11                 If you are in favor of the project at

         12  7A, so state that.  Because, in effect, there is

         13  three--.

         14                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  The wisdom of

         15  Solomon, Mr. Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Then there is

         17  the people who are opposed in general.

         18                 MR. LOESER:  My name is David Loeser.

         19    I am a local resident.  I am also in real estate

         20  myself.

         21                 The reason for me being here today is

         22  I support R7A. There are no affordable housing units

         23  available in the neighborhood right now.  There are

         24  a lot of families that wish to continue to live

         25  there, and do not have the opportunity.  I was
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          2  actually living in Manhattan, I moved back to the

          3  neighborhood. The developer has committed to doing a

          4  lot of very positive things. All concerns have been

          5  addressed, 100 percent parking underground, as much

          6  open space as possible, not a tower, only an eight-

          7  story building.  And they have done very well.

          8  Everybody has been talking very well.  We have been

          9  up since 9 o'clock last night signing as many names

         10  as possible, and there are a lot of people in favor

         11  of an R7A, and R7A is the best way to go by far.

         12                 MS. REICH:  Good afternoon.  My name

         13  is June Reich. I live at 51 Kermit Place, and I am

         14  testifying in favor of the modified R7B zoning for

         15  22 Caton Place.

         16                 I have two main reasons for

         17  supporting R7B.  One is proper zoning for the

         18  neighborhood.  Everybody that has ruled on this

         19  ULURP application from Community Board 7 to City

         20  Planning, recognizes that R7A is too large for an

         21  interior lot on a narrow street.  CB 7 and City

         22  Planning also recognized that the current R6 zoning

         23  is wrong for the neighborhood.  We belong in the

         24  Ocean Parkway special district, and should have been

         25  downzoned to R5 in 1993.  But City Planning did not
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          2  revisit the downzoning of our portion of Windsor

          3  Terrace as it intended, it is unfortunate and should

          4  be rectified immediately.

          5                 Second, zoning should not be decided

          6  lot by lot while our neighborhood is R6.  Everyone

          7  seems to agree that R6 is a horrible designation

          8  with no contextual limitations.  As long as our

          9  enclave remains R6, we can be and in fact have been,

         10  threatened with looming towers or lot- line to lot-

         11  line buildings with surface parking and no Quality

         12  Housing provisions.

         13                 As bad as the specter of this is, I

         14  believe that giving in to R7A now only sets us up to

         15  be threatened again by anyone who wants to`spot

         16  upzone' his property.

         17                 Our neighborhood group, Stable

         18  Brooklyn, voiced our concerns about density in the

         19  neighborhood from the beginning of this process.

         20  That said, we agreed as a group to support R7B with

         21  two eight foot side yards for 22 Caton Place in

         22  order to protect 81 Ocean Parkway, and the houses on

         23  East 8th Street.

         24                 I firmly believe that R7B is a

         25  workable, profitable designation for this developer.
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          2  Mr. Mitzner I believe would agree, after the City

          3  Planning ruling, he was quoted in the Park Slope

          4  Courier as saying that, "R7B is certainly something

          5  we can develop. We believe that under an R7B

          6  district we can produce an attractive building that

          7  will help to meet the housing needs for the

          8  community."

          9                 R7B is a compromised position that

         10  trades minimal bulk increase for contextual zoning.

         11  That Mr. Rocheack (phonetic) has decided in the last

         12  few days that R7B is not profitable enough for him,

         13  in no way persuades me that R7A is the proper

         14  district for this lot.  R7A is as wrong for the

         15  neighborhood as R6.

         16                 My closing remark, I would like to

         17  offer another suggestion to Mr. Rocheack that would

         18  address his desire to build a larger building with

         19  underground parking and larger apartments.

         20                 If an upzone at 22 Caton Place were

         21  bound to a downzoning of the rest of the

         22  neighborhood, his added bulk would be mitigated by

         23  the stabilization  and protection of the rest of the

         24  neighborhood.

         25                 Stable Brooklyn has committed itself
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          2  to the process of community- based planning.  With

          3  the help of an urban planner we are creating a

          4  neighborhood plan that we hope to take to City

          5  Planning and DOT.  There is an imperative here to

          6  change the way planning is done in New York City.

          7  Communities would be willing to share the burden of

          8  growth if they were assured that things they care

          9  about are also protected.  We have concerns about

         10  the rapid, unplanned growth of our neighborhood.

         11  City council can address this one lot, and also the

         12  process by which community planning is done.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I would just say

         15  that I agree with you, and I actually have

         16  legislation in to create a community based planning

         17  system.  It is going to be tough to get past.

         18                 MS. REICH:  I am so supportive.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Next speaker.

         20                 MS. HARRIS:  My name is Mandy Harris.

         21    I live at 51 Kermit Place, and I am opposed to the

         22  application to upzone 22 Caton Place to R7A.

         23                 I am reluctantly in favor of R7B as

         24  modified by City Planning.

         25                 When City Planning modified the
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          2  application to R7B, Amanda Burden said publicly at

          3  the hearing that the application as proposed is

          4  inappropriate, and the existing zoning is also

          5  inappropriate.  She went on to say that the

          6  commissioners had listened to the passionate

          7  testimony of the community and visited the area, and

          8  had come up with a compromise that would protect the

          9  context of the area and allow for appropriate

         10  growth.  She also said that it was a decision that

         11  the applicant had agreed to go along with.

         12                 The applicant, with his threats to

         13  build the R6 building we all dread, is now

         14  apparently not keeping his word of agreement to go

         15  along with the R7B zoning change.  He is instead,

         16  using us and our ability to provide passionate

         17  testimony as a tool to undo a decision he is unhappy

         18  with.

         19                 While I was less than happy to go

         20  along with the R7B upzone, I felt it was necessary

         21  to ensure that a contextual zone replace the

         22  existing R6 zone.  We achieved that purpose, and I

         23  believe adamantly that we should stick to it.

         24                 I am here today to say simply that

         25  R7A is too big, and I am not alone in saying it.  In
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          2  fact, throughout the process since I first began

          3  organizing my community a year ago, we have made the

          4  same case at every meeting and public hearing we

          5  have attended from the community board to the

          6  borough president to City Planning, we have

          7  explained how our small neighborhood has recently be

          8  overburdened by a series of extremely large

          9  developments that have all occurred independently of

         10  one another, with no regard to the overall effect

         11  they will have on the community.

         12                 We have also explained to every

         13  agency and city official that we meet how this could

         14  have all been avoided if back in 1993 City Planning

         15  had simply followed through on their intention to

         16  rezone the entire area from R6 to R5.

         17                 Our few blocks were part of the City

         18  Planning led effort to protect the character and

         19  scale of the interior lots in the Ocean Parkway

         20  district.  But what happened then, threatens to

         21  happen now.  History has a strange way of repeating

         22  itself, memories are short, greed and fear run very

         23  high.

         24                 In 1993 at the last minute, a

         25  developer stepped in to testify to the borough
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          2  president that his interest in a single lot on Caton

          3  Avenue was threatened by the downzoning, and his

          4  intention to build a nursing home on the lot would

          5  be jeopardized.

          6                 City Planning took heed, and amended

          7  the application to remove the downzoning application

          8  from our neighborhood, the same area that has been

          9  attacked to heavily in recent months, with the

         10  caveat that if the nursing home was not built they

         11  would return to the question and follow through on

         12  their intention to downzone.

         13                 But as I said before, memories are

         14  short, that nursing home was never built, the issue

         15  was never revisited and that lot remains vacant

         16  today, probably the subject of our next community

         17  struggle.

         18                 When there is no one to advocate for

         19  a cause, the right thing is too often left undone.

         20                 So, here we stand today threatened as

         21  the same narrow interest who would wish to overturn

         22  the work that has been done by a community that up

         23  until this point has been working together, and

         24  speaking in one voice.

         25                 A developer of a single lot has
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          2  stepped in at the eleventh hour to represent his

          3  interest in developing a parcel of land that lies on

          4  an interior lot on a narrow street, and claiming

          5  that it is simply not profitable to develop the lot

          6  as City Planning has indicated it should be

          7  developed, and that he would build a big, ugly R6

          8  tower that no one wants.

          9                 Moreover, I remain unconvinced that

         10  the applicant cannot develop the lot profitably at

         11  R7B, and provide some of the other things that we

         12  were urged by the City Planning commissioners to

         13  pursue at the next level, namely, affordable housing

         14  and enclosed, if not, underground parking.

         15                 A small amount of research has

         16  pointed me to two other recent local developments

         17  that are scaled appropriately, offer affordable

         18  housing and provide indoor, off street parking.

         19                 I urge this committee to support the

         20  application as amended to R7B, and to urge the

         21  developer to join us in our community planning

         22  efforts that we have begun in consultation with

         23  Professor Tom Angotti (phonetic) and the Hunter

         24  College Center for Community Development.  We

         25  sincerely want him to build a building that is good
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          2  for everyone.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 MR. WERNER:  My name is David Werner.

          5    I live at 40 East 8th Street, and I have lived

          6  there since 1989.  I have raised two daughters there

          7  in our house which is four years short of 100 years

          8  old.  Our backyard abuts Caton Place.  Because Mandy

          9  and June have really covered everything that can be

         10  covered really, I will move to one thing that has

         11  been bothering me.  Last week the Rocheack brothers,

         12  whom we have never met before, the leaseholders, and

         13  Mr. Mitzner called a meeting with Stable Brooklyn.

         14  After much discussion, a vote was taken for 7A or

         15  7B.  7B won decidedly, and I wholeheartedly support

         16  7B, and I do not mind a tower that we have been

         17  threatened with.

         18                 As I said, Mr. DeBlasio and his

         19  Deputy Chief Kersey were there, as well as Randy

         20  Pierce, Chair of Community Board 7. After the

         21  meeting, the losers of the vote contacted Marvin

         22  Mitzner and tried to make their own deal, and

         23  invalidate the election in exchange for promises of

         24  concessions that, to me, seemed not to have any

         25  credibility because already they had added two more
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          2  stories to the wings, making eight stories, then

          3  they had in their original drawings for 7A.

          4                 Anyway, I was told that the

          5  leaseholder went door to door to pursued people to

          6  accept the 7A zoning.  Mr. Mitzner organized and

          7  managed this lobbying.  Recently, City Council put

          8  limits on lobbyists, therefore, I would like to know

          9  why lobbyists may lobby people in their homes.  This

         10  was a very selective lobby. No one knocked on any

         11  doors on my street.  As lobbyists are required by

         12  law to show on public record whom they have lobbied,

         13  I would like to know or there is always the FOIA.

         14  Stable Brooklyn is a bonafide `A' community group

         15  recognized by Community Board 7, the borough

         16  president --.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Could you sum

         18  up, Sir?

         19                 MR. WERNER:  Okay well, the group is

         20  credible. There is no need to send a lobbyist around

         21  to try to undermine it.

         22                 Thanks.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Forgive me in

         24  the meantime for not recognizing Council Member Erik

         25  Dilan.
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          2                 MR. SHAW:  Hello, good morning, my

          3  name is Warren Shaw.  I am the president of 81 Ocean

          4  Parkway Owners Incorporated, the cooperative

          5  corporation which owns 81 Ocean Parkway.  It is a

          6  six- story, 80 unit apartment house immediately

          7  adjacent to the site at issue here this morning.

          8                 22 Caton, the address of the site

          9  that we are discussing today poses a severe problem

         10  for our building because its design could seal up or

         11  darker windows in almost a third of our building,

         12  including some of our largest and most valuable

         13  units. The stakes are very high, and after a lengthy

         14  perhaps convoluted process, the community does not

         15  speak with a single voice on this matter.

         16                 Four development scenarios have been

         17  floated, which I describe in detail in my written

         18  statement.  There has been a lot of intense

         19  negotiation over the last few days, fueled in part

         20  by a new scenario for an R6 tower that would be

         21  built directly against, attached to the eastern

         22  facade of 81 Ocean Parkway, which would cause

         23  maximum damage to our quality of life and investment

         24  values.             It is a somewhat imponderable

         25  situation since it is impossible to say whether that
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          2  is- whether the R6 tower would in fact, go up that

          3  way, but it is a situation that we in our building

          4  must do everything that we can to avoid.  Based on

          5  that and weighing all of the alternatives, we and

          6  the other people who have signed a document favoring

          7  the 7A modification as agreed to last night, I have

          8  about 30 signatures here, we have come to a

          9  judgement that this modified R7A concept supported

         10  by these concessions offers the best alternative.

         11                 This has not been an easy or a simple

         12  process.  I respect all of the carefully considered

         13  points of view and the seriousness of our community

         14  effort.  However for me and the other signatories,

         15  and the other residents of 81 Ocean Parkway, the

         16  modified 7A proposal represents the proposal which

         17  will result in the most livable next door neighbor

         18  among the alternatives, which appear to be on the

         19  table at this moment.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 MR. MOSS:  Good morning, my name is

         22  Nat Moss and I live at 44 East 8th Street, with my

         23  wife Rebecca and our two young kids.

         24                 I am here to speak in favor of the

         25  original R7A upzoning sought by the developer of 22
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          2  Caton Place, which abuts my home.

          3                 I say this with a heavy heart.  As a

          4  dedicated member of the Stable Brooklyn Community

          5  Group, I must tell you that in general I do not

          6  believe that upzoning is in the best interest of our

          7  neighborhood.  Following in the interior block of a

          8  residential community with small homes such as my

          9  own, this upzoning sets a bad precedent for

         10  community planning.

         11                 As I have argued at hearings

         12  throughout this process, upzoning the interior lots

         13  of the Ocean Parkway special district threatens to

         14  disrupt the balance of housing from smaller homes

         15  and the community feeling they engender towards

         16  large apartment complexes that will stress an

         17  already overburdened infrastructure with additional

         18  sewage, traffic, parking, et cetera.

         19                 However, I feel that this upzoning

         20  with the concessions offered by the developer will

         21  enable our community to get the best building for

         22  our neighborhood at 22 Caton Place. Neither the as-

         23  of- right R6 building the developer has said he will

         24  build without the upzoning, which would tower 12

         25  stories above our homes, lot- line to lot- line,
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          2  surrounded by an above ground parking lot, nor the

          3  building that the developer would proceed with under

          4  the R7B upzoning carry any concessions to the

          5  community.

          6                 With the R7A upzoning, the developer

          7  has stated his intention to provide 100 percent

          8  underground parking, and this will help accommodate

          9  a large influx of cars into the neighborhood and

         10  minimize the impact of the new development on

         11  growing traffic congestion in our area, the

         12  inclusion of a landscaped yard offers a greenspace

         13  and pleasing aesthetic for homes bordering the

         14  property, and the commitment to affordable housing

         15  and 80 percent, two to three- bedroom apartments

         16  reflects a willingness to help maintain a diverse

         17  and stable community.

         18                 I can only express my deepest concern

         19  that the council satisfies itself to the greatest

         20  extent possible that these concessions to the

         21  community are upheld, and that good faith actions to

         22  implement them are initiated by the developer at the

         23  earliest possible date.

         24                 I conclude by saying that it is my

         25  fervent hope that I am back here not long from now
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          2  to testify in support of a downzoning of the rest of

          3  the neighborhood.  It is a great community, and I

          4  hope to live here for a long time.

          5                 If I could just add, Mr. Werner

          6  absolutely mischaracterized the meeting last week.

          7  It is a very good faith effort by responsible,

          8  upstanding people in the community to try to get a

          9  few more days to assess whether or not the

         10  concessions that were offered were reasonable and

         11  enforceable, that is all we have been doing.  There

         12  was no end- run around the process.  We have nothing

         13  but respect for our council member and Kersey who

         14  have been helpful for us, and I do not think it is

         15  helpful for this process to be implying bad faith in

         16  that way.  Whichever way you go, I think that you

         17  are hearing responsible sides of this situation from

         18  either perspective.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  We have two more

         21  speakers in favor, Joseph Norton and Tricia Bastian.

         22                 MR. NORTON:  Good morning, my name is

         23  Joseph Norton. I represent Smart Kids Day Care.

         24                 I have been in the direct vicinity

         25  for the past 16 years, and much has been said
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          2  already about 7A and 7B and I would not to dwell

          3  much on that.  But I will get straight to one of my

          4  most important concerns here.  Since I have been

          5  there over 16 years, we have a serious problem, we

          6  have a serious sewage problem, we have a serious

          7  parking problem also.

          8                 So whichever way the council decides

          9  to really vote, that should be considered.  We have

         10  a very, very serious sewage problem there.

         11                 I am the owner of three properties

         12  that is directly butting the subject property, and I

         13  can speak to the years that I have been there that

         14  we have a very, very serious sewage and parking

         15  problem.

         16                 I have looked at some of those

         17  concessions that were made, and it seems to be very

         18  attractive, but what we need to have is something-

         19  something needs to be set in place that will ensure

         20  that the developer to honor his word.

         21                 I am very much concerned because for

         22  the time that I have been there, I would like it to

         23  be noted on the record that we have a day care, we

         24  have a day care right there and there was damage

         25  that was done to one of my garages there, and it
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          2  took me several weeks before I got any response.

          3  Fortunately or unfortunately, it was only yesterday

          4  evening that I was approached by someone.  I went

          5  and I spoke to one of the supervisors there, so I

          6  also would like to know is that in the event of

          7  damage that has been done to ones property, I need

          8  to have something in writing from the owner, I know

          9  his attorney is here, so maybe now would be the

         10  appropriate time, something in writing that whatever

         11  damage has been done or may be done, would be

         12  rectified, will be taken care of.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Well, you can

         14  ask that question of him since he is here, and you

         15  would obviously be entitled, probably, to legal

         16  action, but I am not an attorney so I cannot advise

         17  you of that.

         18                 MR. NORTON:  But I am trying to avoid

         19  that, so, I want it to be on record also that we

         20  have a day care there that takes care of several

         21  dozens of children, neighborhood children, and if it

         22  has taken so long just to get word on a damaged

         23  garage wall, what happens, God forbid that if

         24  something worse happens here?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Right.
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          2                 MR. NORTON:  So, I need written

          3  guarantees on that from the developer.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I was looking

          5  for Council Member deBlasio or his staff.

          6                 Are you aware of this issue?

          7                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  (Inaudible)

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  So, I would

          9  suggest you would talk to Councilman deBlasio's

         10  staff right after you leave that chair.

         11                 The applicant is still here

         12  someplace, obviously, and we will make that

         13  connection.

         14                 MR. NORTON:  Thank you.

         15                 MS. BASTIAN:  Good day, council

         16  members.

         17                 My name is Tricia Bastian.  I am a 15

         18  year resident of 30 Ocean Parkway, which is across

         19  the street.  It might as well be across the world

         20  from where this is happening because it was split up

         21  by Robert Moses' last ill- conceived neighborhood

         22  thing with the Prospect Expressway, essentially

         23  separating the two neighborhoods.  We have just

         24  begun to recover from that as a neighborhood, and

         25  now people are coming from the outside and seeking
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          2  to destroy the very character of the neighborhood by

          3  putting in buildings that are ridiculous.

          4                 On this street, Caton Street, two

          5  other hastily gone through buildings are up.  One of

          6  them is a 9- story, I believe, residence which

          7  impedes on the view line from Prospect Park, which I

          8  am very interested in retaining that historic

          9  concept of not going over the trees.  One, that is

         10  replacing something that was quaintly known as the

         11   "little gray barn", it looks like a suburban office

         12  tower, glass and aluminum, it does not go in

         13  character with the neighborhood, it goes lot- line

         14  to lot- line, and then on top of this, this new

         15  development that we are talking about.

         16                 I am speaking in favor of R7B

         17  designation, and I am opposed to the blanket R6

         18  designation of our neighborhood.  I feel like we

         19  really slipped through the cracks.  Windsor Terrace

         20  has been historically a lower to middle- class

         21  neighborhood of mostly blue- collar people, and we

         22  do not have the cache of Park Slope but now

         23  suddenly, it has drifted downstream to us, and we

         24  are having to deal with this.

         25                 I just think that we can work
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          2  together with the developers, and as a community to

          3  make something that is pleasant and nice.

          4                 One of the things that Robert Moses

          5  did to the neighborhood was split up this beautiful

          6  promenade from Prospect Park all the way into the

          7  Atlantic Ocean by putting in these, essentially,

          8  these ill-kempt (sic), dangerous pedestrian

          9  walkways, and these highway overpasses.  One of them

         10  goes right past Councilman Bill deBlasio's office.

         11  It looks like a high speed entrance ramp, it

         12  says`Fort Hamilton Parkway.'  As soon as you reach

         13  highway speed, you bottom out into a stop light,

         14  there is a church, an elementary school, a library

         15  and a playground, and I think this hastily conceived

         16  and ill- conceived design, this is not in keeping

         17  with the neighborhood or the wishes of everyone, and

         18  I thank you for your consideration.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.

         20                 Council Member Felder, did you have a

         21  question?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  First of all,

         23  I am very familiar with the area that you just said,

         24  and there is a lot of traffic issues other than that

         25  there.  But, I just wanted to mention that, first of
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          2  all, I want to thank Councilman Jackson for the

          3  remarks made earlier about judging things based on

          4  whatever is going on, not to get into other things

          5  that are not important.

          6                 Also, a lot of the issues that are

          7  being raised relate more to the enforcement of the

          8  Buildings Department and I think the lack of the

          9  staff that they have, and the lack of teeth that the

         10  Building Department has in enforcing its own codes,

         11  whether somebody is rezoning or not.

         12                 Many of the things that were said by

         13  some of the witnesses have nothing to do with the

         14  rezoning at all.  It has to do with the fact that

         15  they are calling, whether they are calling 311 or

         16  contacting the Buildings Department directly, and

         17  they are not getting the response that is necessary,

         18  and I think that the Buildings Department in all the

         19  boroughs really needs additional money to get staff

         20  and to be able to do what they have to do, and not

         21  have to respond to, God forbid, somebody dying when

         22  something caves in, and then suddenly there is a

         23  crisis.

         24                 The other thing that was mentioned,

         25  which was of very much interest to me by the prior
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          2  witness, was about the issue of sewage and planning

          3  in general, which I do not- I have not heard much

          4  about, since I am here, with the rezonings whether

          5  they are obviously, if they are being downzoned,

          6  then it is less of a problem, but it is still a

          7  problem.

          8                 The general planning for structures

          9  within the City, we have many problems in my own

         10  district with backed up sewers, no matter what the

         11  building that is taking place, the sewers that were

         12  constructed, whenever they were constructed, never,

         13  ever were able to take what they are having to take

         14  now, and that is why the stuff is going back into

         15  people's homes, and they are being told by the

         16  City's DEP and sewer department to buy contraptions

         17  that electronically, sort of, stop the sewage from

         18  backing up into the house if it is coming the wrong

         19  way.  The reason for that is that it cannot hold it,

         20  so whether it is 7A or 7B, the issue in general, I

         21  just would like to recommend, I do not know exactly

         22  how that should-- you know, what the proper venue

         23  for that is.

         24                 But with the planning that is being

         25  done, what is really being done to address the

                                                            129

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  issues that really effect -- the traffic studies are

          3  done when some of the stuff is considered but the

          4  sewer issues, the water issues, I do not remember

          5  that being ever addressed at all, and we are really

          6   -- we are reeking havoc no matter what we approve

          7  in terms of future constructions in neighborhoods

          8  throughout the City, that never were prepared for

          9  it, and I would ask the Chair if there is something

         10  we could do about that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  You certainly

         12  bring up an interesting point.

         13                 As part of any development

         14  application or permit for a building, the developer

         15  must include the sewer connections, et cetera.  It

         16  had always been my thinking that the Department of

         17  Buildings would refer that section out to the

         18  Department of Environmental Protection.  They would

         19  then approve it or disapprove it, and then it would

         20  go back to the Department of Buildings.

         21                 That apparently is not the case, and

         22  the issue that you are bringing up is absolutely

         23  true.  Department of Buildings makes the

         24  determination on its own, and part of this goes into

         25  the self- certification issue.
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          2                 So this is something I am actually

          3  starting to look at because it is a problem, that in

          4  effect, you have a developer putting in an improper

          5  plan, the Department of Buildings is not referring

          6  it to the appropriate agency, and then the building

          7  goes up and you find out that all of a sudden the

          8  sewer system is overtaxed.  It is an important issue

          9  that I am just starting to look at but I would love

         10  to have your help on the issue.

         11                 MR. NORTON:  And Mr. Chair, if you

         12  may indulge me just a few seconds more?

         13                 This question with the sewer, this

         14  may not be the appropriate forum for that but I know

         15  that it is important that it must be mentioned.

         16                 We got petitions concerning sewer a

         17  few years ago, and we complained to DEP to see if

         18  there was something we could do about that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Well, if I can,

         20  this now goes beyond what we are talking about.  I

         21  would be more than happy to talk to you after the

         22  hearing is over, but I would like to move the agenda

         23  along.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 If there is no one else signed up to
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          2  speak on this item, I will close the public hearing.

          3                 MS. BASTIAN:  I just wanted to say

          4  one more thing.

          5                 I went off script but I wanted to

          6  thank Council Member Felder for bringing up the

          7  thing of due notice and communication between the

          8  community because we across the street, across the

          9  highway, did not really know what was going on until

         10  we saw the first big building go up.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Council Member

         12  Felder brings it up at every meeting.

         13                 MS. BASTIAN:  Oh, good for him, good

         14  for him.

         15                 Thank you guys.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  For the record,

         17  Land Use Number 92 and 93, which is C060210 ZMM and

         18  C060211 ZSM, commonly referred to as the Madison

         19  Park West rezoning, has been laid over at the

         20  request of our Speaker.

         21                 We have been trying to reach out to

         22  members.  We at present do not have a quorum to take

         23  a vote.  So, what we will do is recess the meeting

         24  until 9:15 on Wednesday morning.

         25                 However, it is the intention of this
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          2  Committee, and let me just for committee members, so

          3  we know what we are going to be doing on Wednesday,

          4  approving the Midwood rezoning with a modification.

          5                 As you remember, the homeowners who

          6  brought to our attention this morning about the fact

          7  that there is about six or seven homes surrounded by

          8  apartment buildings, and they asked to be left

          9  basically alone.

         10                 We have actually gotten cooperation

         11  from the Department of City Planning because Council

         12  Member Nelson who wanted something to be done for

         13  those homeowners, also wanted this application to

         14  move ahead as expeditiously as possible.

         15                 We will vote this out Wednesday

         16  morning, City Planning is meeting Wednesday, they

         17  will vote on the modification, send it back to us in

         18  time for the Full Council to vote later on that day.

         19                 So, we will continue in that plan for

         20  the west side of Ocean Avenue, between Avenue L and

         21  Avenue M, that it go to R6A instead of the R5B.

         22  That will be the modification on approval.

         23                 We will also approve the Union-

         24  Utopia rezoning.

         25                 We will approve the Caton Place

                                                            133

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  rezoning to the R7B, and that will be it.

          3                 So we will see you 9:15, Wednesday

          4  morning. This meeting is recessed until then.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 12:25 p.m.)
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         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.
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